
As a courtesy to those persons affected, please attend the meeting smoke and scent free. The County of Santa Cruz does not discriminate on the basis of 
disability, and no person shall, by reason of a disability, be denied the benefits of its services, programs, or activities.  If you wish to attend this meeting and you 
will require special assistance in order to participate, please contact Micki Coca Buss at (831) 454-7505 (TDD number 454-2123) at least 72 hours in advance of 
the meeting to make arrangements.  Persons with disabilities may request a copy of the agenda in an alternative format. 

 County of Santa Cruz 
HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION 

PH (831) 454-4130ꞏ FAX (831) 454-4642 
1000 Emeline Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

www.hsd.co.santa-cruz.ca.us        www.workforcescc.com 
 

 
AGENDA 

Wednesday, January 19, 2022 
8:30 a.m. – 10:30 a.m. 

*This is a Virtual Public Meeting* 
 
Pursuant to AB 361 and Cal. Gov. Code section 54953, due to the ongoing COVID 19 state of emergency 
and upon recommendation of the County Health Officer, public meetings of the Human Services 
Commission will be conducted in in hybrid/remote format. Members of the public can attend virtually by 
teleconference (or in-person, if hybrid).  
 
There will be no physical location available for this meeting, however access to the meeting and an 
opportunity to comment live and in real time will be provided.  Please follow the meeting instructions listed 
below.  The instructions will also be posted on the Human Services Department webpage at 
https://www.santacruzhumanservices.org/Home/HumanServicesCommission 
 

Virtual Meeting Instructions: 
Join on your computer or mobile app 

Click here to join the meeting 
 

Or call in (audio only) 

+1 916-318-9542 United States, Sacramento 
Phone Conference ID: 975 930 524# 

 
 

To provide written public comments associated with any agenda item, please submit by email to 
micki.cocabuss@santacruzcounty.us  
 
For Questions regarding the virtual meeting process, please contact Micki Coca Buss, Administrative 
Support at 831-454-7505 or micki.cocabuss@santacruzcount.us  
 
 
The meeting starts at 8:30 a.m. with the first item and proceeds through the items in consecutive order unless 
otherwise noted. 
 

I. Roll Call           (2 min) 

II. Agenda Review          (2 min) 

III. Announcements          (5 min) 

IV. Public Comment          (5 min) 
Members of the public may address the Commission on items not on the agenda for  
a maximum of five minutes each.  

Page 1 of 49



V. Correspondence/Information Only        (3 min) 

VI. Approval of Minutes (Action)        (2 min) 
 November 17, 2021 

    
VII. Approval of Findings Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361 Authorizing Teleconference Meetings 

(Action)           (5 min) 
 

VIII. Review and Approval of 2020-2021 Human Services Commission Biennial Report  
(Action)           (20 min) 
 

IX. Election of Officers (Action)        (10 min) 
 

X. Director’s Report            (30 min) 
 Santa Cruz County Board of Supervisors Agenda Items: Regular and Consent  
          

XI. 2021 Human Services Commission Work Plan (Action)     (35 min) 
 Discussion of priorities and staff recommendations 
 Engagement strategies including with other County Commissions  

and within Supervisory districts  
Related materials: 

 Human Services Commission Draft Work Plan Year 2020 (pages 7-10) 
 Commissions, Committees, and Advisory Bodies (pages 11-12) 

 
XII. Next Meeting and Agenda Items        (2 min) 

March 16, 2022 – Location to be determined. 

XIII. Adjournment 

A complete agenda packet will be available for review at the Human Services Department webpage 
https://www.santacruzhumanservices.org/Home/HumanServicesCommission 

Page 2 of 49



MATERIALS AND CORRESPONDENCE IN PACKET 

From the Board of Supervisors Agenda  
Full agenda items on indicated dates available at https://santacruzcountyca.iqm2.com/Citizens/Calendar.aspx  

BOS Date Item 
Page # in 

packet 
11/16/2021 
Item # 33 

DOC-2021-964 : Adopt resolution to accept and appropriate unanticipated revenue 
in the amount of $297,652 from the California Department of Social Services; 
approve an agreement with Housing Matters in the amount of $181,023, approve 
two agreements with Downtown Streets Team in the amounts of $303,801 and 
$51,568, and an agreement with Community Action Board of Santa Cruz County, 
Inc. in the amount of $274,350, for CalFresh Employment & Training (CFET) 
Employment Readiness, Work Experience and Cleanup Project services, and take 
related actions as recommended by the Director of Human Services 

5 

12/07/2021 
Item # 74 

DOC-2021-1035 : Accept and file report on Human Services Continuing 
Agreements List renewals with changes and agreements that did not meet the 
renewal deadline, and ratify agreements, as recommended by the Director of 
Human Services 

11 

12/07/2021 
Item # 75 

DOC-2021-1036 : Accept and file annual report on the Child Care Developer Fees 
collected during Fiscal Year 2020-21 and direct the department to return to the 
Board with the Fiscal Year 2021-22 annual report in December 2022, as 
recommended by the Director of Human Services

14 

12/07/2021 
Item # 76 

DOC-2021-1038 : Approve scope of work amendments to agreements with Abode 
Services and Housing Matters to allow for flexibility in providing landlord 
incentives that facilitate program participants’ attainment of permanent housing, 
including retroactive application of the amended terms to July 1, 2021, and take 
related actions, as recommended by the Director of Human Services 

17 

12/07/2021 
Item # 77 

DOC-2021-1039 : Approve agreement with Housing Authority of the County of 
Santa Cruz in the amount of $53,540 to administer a landlord risk mitigation fund, 
and take related actions, as recommended by the Director of Human Services 

20 

12/07/2021 
Item # 78 

DOC-2021-1040 : Ratify the extension of 57.0 full-time equivalent limited-term 
positions to continue to support emergency shelter response related to COVID-19 
until June 30, 2022, approve the alternate staffing of 19.0 Clerk II and 12.0 Clerk 
III positions, and approve the conversion of 1.0 full-time equivalent limited-term 
Sr. Human Services Analyst position to a permanent position, as recommended by 
the Director of Human Services.

22 

12/07/2021 
Item # 79 

DOC-2021-1041 : Ratify the Human Services Department application for the 
United States Treasury Department Emergency Rental Assistance Round 2 and 
adopt resolution authorizing the Human Services Director or designee, to enter into 
an agreement with the State to administer the County’s Emergency Rental 
Assistance Round 2 funds, and take related actions, as recommended by the 
Director of Human Services 

25 

12/07/2021 
Item # 80 

DOC-2021-1042 : Ratify the submission of a grant application to the California 
Department of Social Services to accept Housing and Disability Advocacy Program 
award in the amount of $1,502,142; adopt a resolution accepting and appropriating 
unanticipated revenue in the amount of $123,915; approve amendment to an 
agreement with Community Action Board of Santa Cruz County, Inc., increasing 
the agreement by $217,092 to a new total amount of $400,000 for Housing and 
Disability Advocacy Program housing payment assistance; and take related actions, 
as recommended by the Director of Human Services

28 

Page 3 of 49



BOS Date Item 
Page # in 

packet 
1/11/2022 
Item # 47 

DOC-2022-34 : Accept and file report on COVID-19 related amendments and new 
agreements approved by County Purchasing Agent under authority of the Board of 
Supervisors, and approve one amended agreement with Good Guard, in the amount 
of $1,200,000, for security services at shelters providing COVID-19 assistance, as 
recommended by the Director of the Human Services 

31 

 

COMMISSION COMMITTEE AGENDAS AND MINUTES 

 Child Care Planning Council http://www.childcareplanning.org/ 

 IHSS Advisory Commission 
http://www.santacruzhumanservices.org/AdultLongTermCare/InHomeSupportiveServices
/AdvisoryCommission.aspx 

 Santa Cruz County Women’s Commission http://www.sccwc.org/Home/Meetings.aspx 

 Santa Cruz County Seniors Commission http://www.sccseniors.org/Home/Meetings.aspx 

 Santa Cruz County Commission on Disabilities http://scccod.net/ 

 Santa Cruz County Latino Affairs Commission http://scclatinoaffairs.org  
 

OTHER MATERIALS   

 Meeting Minutes – November 2021 (page 33 of packet) 

 AB361 (page 35 of packet) 

 Biennial Report (page 37 of packet) 

 Draft 2022 Workplan (page 45 of packet) 

 2022 Human Services Commission meeting schedule (page 49 of packet) 

Page 4 of 49



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *+�,�)-./�" *�� 0�1" "2%*�!"#$%&"'�(%$%'%. �34567�898:865;��	��<�=���>))#.$"�?@,A�B.C�D"�0% "''�E�F.#G�,H)"#%" &"�>I#""�" *'�J�������K
����L.$"�C"#�6MN�O;O6��P�=����������=����Q�R��67�>0.)*���#"'.-�*%. ��&&")*% I�� 0��))#.)#%�*% I�� � *%&%)�*"0�#"$" �"�% �*S"���.� *�.2�TOUVNM9O�2#.��*S"�?�-%2.# %��(")�#*�" *�.2�!.&%�-�!"#$%&"'�% *.�*S"�2%'&�-�/"�#�O;O6:OO����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�C�0I"*W��O7�>))#.$"��I#""�" *�OOFOOMO�X%*S��.�'% I�Y�**"#'N�% �*S"���.� *�.2�T646N;O5N�*.�)#.$%0"�?�-@#"'S�,�)-./�" *�E�A#�% % IN�,�)-./�" *�D"�0% "''�'"#$%&"'W��57�>))#.$"��I#""�" *�OOF8;98�X%*S�(.X *.X �!*#""*'�A"��N�% �*S"���.� *�.2�T5;5N4;6�*.�)#.$%0"�?�-@#"'S�,�)-./�" *�E�A#�% % IN�F.#G�,H)"#%" &"�� 0�L.#*S�?.� */�?-"� �)�Z#.["&*�'"#$%&"'W���87�>))#.$"��I#""�" *�OOF8;M5�X%*S�(.X *.X �!*#""*'�A"��N�% �*S"���.� *�.2�T96N9M4N�*.�)#.$%0"�?�-@#"'S�,�)-./�" *�E�A#�% % IN�F.#G�,H)"#%" &"�� 0�!� *��?#�\�L"%ISC.#S..0�?-"� �)�Z#.["&*�'"#$%&"'W��97�>))#.$"��I#""�" *�OOF86;4�X%*S�?.��� %*/�>&*%. �1.�#0�.2�!� *��?#�\�?.� */N�] &N�% �*S"���.� *�.2�TOV8N59;N�2.#���*"#��.2�̂&*.C"#�6N�O;O6�*S#.�IS�!")*"�C"#�5;N�O;OON�*.�)#.$%0"�?�-@#"'S�,�)-./�" *�E�A#�% % IN�F�*'. $%--"�F.#G'�_�F.#G�,H)"#%" &"�'"#$%&"'W�� 0��M7�>�*S.#%\"�*S"�(%#"&*.#�.2����� �!"#$%&"'�*.�"H"&�*"�*S"��I#""�" *'̀��ab�=������	���
���AS"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�3�!(7��0�% %'*"#'�!�))-"�" *�-�L�*#%*%. �>''%'*� &"�Z#.I#���3!L>Z7�C" "2%*'N�G .X ��'�?�-@#"'S�% �?�-%2.# %�̀��!(��-'.��0�% %'*"#'�'"#$%&"�&. *#�&*'�X%*S� . )#.2%*�)�#* "#'�XS.�)#.$%0"�"22"&*%$"�"�)-./�" *�#"�0% "''�'"#$%&"'�2.#�&.��� %*/��"�C"#'�XS.��#"�S.�"-"''̀�A.�*S%'�" 0N��!(�#"&.��" 0'�*S"�!� *��?#�\�?.� */�1.�#0�.2�!�)"#$%'.#'�31.�#07��&&")*�TOUVNM9O�% �� � *%&%)�*"0�?�-@#"'S�,�)-./�" *�E�A#�% % I�3?@,A7�#"$" �"�2#.��*S"�?�-%2.# %��(")�#*�" *�.2�!.&%�-�!"#$%&"'�3?(!!7�*.�"H)� 0�?@,A�&. *#�&*"0��&*%$%*%"'̀�>00%*%. �--/N��!(�'""G'�cde�fghijkl�hmmignho�pgi�hqieerescl�tucd�cdiee�sgsmigpuc�vgscihvcgilw�xgylusq�zhcceil�3�Y7N�*S"�(.X *.X �!*#""*'�A"���3(!A7�� 0�?.��� %*/�>&*%. �1.�#0�.2�!� *��?#�\�?.� */N�] &̀�3?>17�*.�)#.$%0"�� ��##�/�.2�?@,A�'"#$%&"'�2.#�"-%I%C-"�?�-@#"'S�#"&%)%" *'�"H)"#%" &% I�.#��*:#%'G�.2�S.�"-"'' "''N��--�2.#���2"0"#�-�2%'&�-�/"�#�3@@{7�*"#��.2�&̂*.C"#�6N�O;O6�*S#.�IS�!")*"�C"#�5;N�O;OÒ�

||

}~�����}������

Page 5 of 49



��������	
������������������������������������������� ���������������������!�"������������#����������$�����"��!����������#�������%����#�������#��������������&�"���������������"��!��'(()'*�'++,-.'*�-/�0123,�45678�9*'(:�'(;�2(<),2�/)(;<�',2�)<2;�/-,�=->�<2',?1@�0,'3(3(A�����$��B��C������"�����!�"���������������������#�������!�����������#��������������"�����"����#���� %�������� ������#���������������"�������"������"�������"�����$��B������������������������������������������������&����$������������������������������������$�������������������%���������������������������D�" "���������E���������"��&����F�������&�GHI�������F���F������������������"���������������������!�"��%���J�������K�������JLM�����"�����"����$����JK����"��NHHO�������!�������������������� ������������������!�"������������������"�������$��������!����#������������#��������$��B&���������#���"�P�#������������B����&��""�����������������������������������&��������!�����������������������������������"�%�L��!�"���"�����������!������������� ���������������"������������������������P�#�����"��������������������������"����������������������""�����������"��������&���������������B������������ ����%��M�$���$��L������������JLM�����"�����"����$����ML�����"��K� ����NHOQ�������!��������R��B��C������"��S�������TR�SU�P�#��������������$��B��C������"����������#�������!�������$����������������������"��!���������%�JLM������#������C���������������!�"������������������������$��������M�������������S�#��"�R��B��TMSRU���������J������L��!�"���VA2(?W�XYZV[�/-,�012�4\-,01�5-)(0W�5*2'()+�9,-=2?0:�3(�])(2�-/�̂_̀ab�812�\-,01������ ���������S��P�"�������c�������P�#�����������"��!��������������F����"������#��"����"�������������������"��������M�!�������������#��"���������������%�L��!�"�����"������*3002,�'>'02d2(0�'<�'�+',0�-/�e9fg<�Z-*3;�f'<02�h�i2?W?*3(A�7;)?'03-(�+,-A,'d@�'<�j2**�'<�<W,3(A2�,2d-.'*�'<�-(2�+',0�-/�YZVg<�ZW,3(A2�Z2,.3?2<�9,-A,'db��k��K��"�����NHNH&�����l����������!������������������������$����ML������C��������������������������!�"�������$��������L��������c�m����#���������������S��P�"�%���������������&�����������������������$����JLn&����!�������������"��������"��!������"����"�������������"���� �#�����������������������#�����������L��������c&���"�������#������������#������������� ����������!��o�������#�������# �JLn�����#����"����������P�"�����B�����������E������GHI����������������"�%�MSR�"�����#���������B������������������������������"�!�����# �������������"������������E������GHI����"����������m���������� ������������P�"�%�L������������#�����������������������������C���c�����������"������p�"������� �#����������ML�����!�"��%����������� �n"�����l��������L��������c������ &�k�"%�k��NHOq&���������������������������������R�����!�����������C������"�����������������$����P�#���������������$��B��C������"�����!�"���"�������$��������������������"�&��nl�#�������������������$��������&�R�����!�����R��B�%�R�����!�����R��B��������"�����������������$��������������������!����������������$���$��R�����!����&�S�P����r�!�������L�������������������!��#���������������� ����������������&�������$��B��B������������������ ��C������������������������������������%�K�� �������������!���# �R�����!�����R��B������������������� ���"�������������������#�����������������B�� ������#����������������������������������!�"��%��

ss

tuvwxy�tz{�|}~

Page 6 of 49



��������	

�����������	�	�	�

�������������������
	����	������
���������������	�����������������������
	����	��������������
��	��������	�����������
��������������������� ����!"#�$"$%&���'������	�����������������	�������������	

�����
	�������(�)�������#���(#���������(��������

���������������	��	��������*)��	�����)�������	�����������	�����))���������������*)��	���	����������	���������
��������	�����������������+�������&�,����������	

�������)�������	��
�����
	������������	������������������	���������-������	�	�������
	��&��*)���	�����������

������	����������./0121�32456723�869:�;<=�60�9:2�>42?924�@?93A056BB2�?42?�?B6>03�869:�9:2�;A/09CD3����	�������*)�����E�,�����	����	�������������������+�������&��FGHIJKLK�����	���M�������(��	���EEN�$"$"O$%#��M���������!P��E�,�)���	�	)������������
�)���-�������	����������)
�������	�)���	������	����	
	�������	���������)���)
������&�Q���������������)
������������)
��#�RST����������)
���������������	���������#�����$ST���������������

��������������	���������&����	�	���

�#�$�)�������)���	�	)���������	����������������������	������	���������	
��)���	�	)��	���	������)������&�U��	�����������	���������)����	�������	���EEN�$"$"O$%�������	��	�	����
��	�)��������������QVU(O%W�)�����	����������������������������XY�Z	����	������)
�*��	������	��������������
�����	�)�������)����������������������
�������������)
������	�	�	������	�����������	����	���)�	���)��	��&����M��	

�����	����)���	�	����	�	
�����)
�����������	���������	����	��EEN�$"$%O$$�����
	�	�
����
E��������	)	������*)��	���	��������O�	���������
�������&�,��������������	

�����	��������������������������)����������)���	�	)���������������	�����������)
���������)
������	�	�	��#������������	���������)
������#��������������)
���������������	��������������������	�������	������	������&��(����������������,����U��EEN�$"$"O$%#�(�,��������S"��E�,�����

���	��	�	���
���	���-������	�	������������*)��	���������	���&�Q��������������#�$[T���������	��	����������	���)�����������	����	����������������
��	���
�����#����������������������������	���#�$$T��	������	��������)
�������)
������������)
��&�Q���������������)
��������	����)
������������)
��#�%""T����������)
���������������	���������#��	���S"T�����	�	�����)
�������������P�������&�\�������������
����)����-����)���	�	)�������������������
����%%#]$[���

������������#�����W]���)�����	������
�����������	���������������������������	����Q����������$"$"&����	�	���

�#����������+�\�	�����������
����)����-����)���	�	)�������������������
����R#P$[���

�����������������!WR���)�����	������
���������������
	�����	����������������	����Q����������$"$"&��̂6_6B?4�9A�32456723�̀4A56121�aC�bcd�ê fD3�À24?96A03�1/460>�ggh�ijijO$%�������	��	�	����
��	�)��������������QVU(O%W�)�����	����������������������������XY�Z	����	������)
�*��	������	��������������
�����	�)�������)����������������������
��������	�	�	������	�����������	����	���)�	���)��	��&�,�������������������	���(�,��	

�����	���������	������-������	�	������������*)��	���������	���������
	�	�
����
E��������	)	������*)��	���	��������O�	���������
�������&����	�	���

�#�����)���������������

��
����)�)��-��������	�����	

�����	�������������������������������������������������	����
	������������������������	�)�����������#������

��������)����������)���	�	)�����

kk

lmnopq�lrs�tuv

Page 7 of 49



������������	
������	�����
�����	�����������
��������
	���
��
�����
������	��������	�������	����
�������	����
������	���� 	���!���������������
������
�������������	������������	��������	���������
��"������
���	������	��������	�
��������������
�!����	"����!�
#����
#��$��
�	�����
"�����%��&��	�����%���	������
"������
	��������
������'�	��()()���
�����'����()(*����������
��
����	���������+,���
����	�����
���
#��$��
�	����	��
���

�����������
������
����
"�����-���������	�������(./�
���"�������	��������	�����	�������������������0./���������������������
���
"�����	����������	������!����	"����!�
#����
����	���
���"��������������*�1+)����������
�����	��(�*+0�������
���	���������
���������
���"����
�������	�����!����	"�����	�����������		��
��
������
�����	���'�	�����()()���23456�7896:;<=>>?�7:@A6�B:@A�?CD?@=?;E?�D@:F@8G�B=>>�H:EI6�:;�D@:<=J=;F�K:L�9@8=;=;F��	����
#��$��
�	�����
"������
������������
����
����	���	������
����
�!����	"�����
����$��
�	�	���
���M
�#������������	�����������
����	��������������
����������	����
������
����	���������������������������
���
"�����	������������������	����
������
����	�����������&
��
�����
��
��	��������������������
��������������	������������	����
	�������
�
���"����
����
�������������
����������������������
��	�������
����	���������������	
������	�����
�����	�����������
��������
	���
��
�����
������	���N	�	��������O�"�	���PQ?�?;9=@?9R�:H�STU56�H?J?@8>�H=6E8>�R?8@�8>>:E89=:;�:H�2VWP�@?<?;I?�B86�;:9�A;:B;�89���������%�X��������������Y�()(*M((����������
����
�����
�"��������������	����
�������������		�������	�������
������������
�����	��������
�������%�X�
������	����������
����������
�������	�������	���	�	�������������
�"�	���	���������	�����Z(1[�.+(�	�������%�X��Y�()(*M((�������������������	��������������
�������	����������������������������������������������"�M	�����
�	��	���	��	����Y�()(*M((��������
����	�����\]̂_̂ ]̀_a�bcd_̀e�������
����	������	���
�f�
����	�����������	�������	���g�	�
�����	�����������	���	���������
	��X���
���	�������������
"����h�X��i�����
������������	��j��
�		��h����i���	��������	�
�������������%���	���
"����X���
���	��h%�Xik������!�����j�O�����	���������	�&
��
�����	��������	�
�������������X���
���	�����&�����!�
#��hX&!ik��	���
�"������������������	���g�	�
�����	��������������������
	��%�
��O������	� 	���"����	�����	�
�������������%������T?@<=E?6�3F?;ER56�lST3m�TR@=;F?�T?@<=E?6�n@:F@8Go�B=>>�HI;J�9Q?�6?@<=E?6�:I9>=;?J�=;����������������	�
������	���������������
�������	�������	���	�	�������������
�"�	����������
�����	�
�����	������������
�����
�f�
���+)p+)��������q����������
���
���
�"����	���
�����������	�
����
���������
��"�
����������	�	M����
������%�X���������	��	���
�����%����������	���	��������������X����	��������	�
�����������	�����	�	�����"������
�f�
���+)p+)������������������	�����
������������*))/���������	���������������X&!���	�
����	����%���	��q����
���r���((!((.(s��t� %�X�gu�v��s�,1(*))M.(,0*��

ww

xyz{|}�x~�����

Page 8 of 49



�������������		�
��	������������������� ��������	������������  �������!��� "�#�����	��� ������$������� "�������	��� $������� !���������������		�
��	������������� ����� "�#�����	��� ������$������� "�������	��� $������� !����%�&�'���#(�'���)���*��+�������%�&,�%�&�����-�(������������!����� ��������	������������  �������!��� "�#�����	��� ������$������� "�������	��� $������� !���./01/2345�6718�972:28/;<=���#��)��%�>�&
��'��?@	�A�B'���	����C&�*����ADE	�'	�(	�����&��@�F	
�&�(	
����*���(�@�%��
	�B��'��G����H	�%@	��&E����I	(�����J��
�+&�*	*�?��"����������*�"�#��@'K�
��'�H��H	�%�&���L
�K��@
�+���
&EE���'�K���
&
��'��?@	�	�B'���	���?��E��B'*'�K�
	�B'(	
��H���E���	(���&��%�&���L
����&��@��	
�&�(	
��H��&KH�E��E	���	(�(@'�K���*��	+&
	�H��*@'�K�������>����'(�A(������A*&(��'���@�CEE���&�'��G����H	�AE@��	���F	�*'�	

�����J�ADE	�'	MNO�PQRSQTU�TMV�WXOTMYZ�PQR[ON\�]OQ̂_NO]�̀YMVOV�ab�cdef]�Wghi�jXXRNT\_RM�E��B'*	����J��	�*'�	

������H	�I�?����'�'�K�����J�	DE	�'	�(	���*�I�?��	�	��'���
	�B'(	
����%�@k�	
H��	('E'	��
�	DE	�'	�('�K��������'
J��+�H�	@	

�	

���H��H�B	�@'��@	����������J�	DE	�'	�(	����.lm:4//2n�mop�F��*��q���'
��"&����	�B'(	
��'�	(�����r25s::28n2n�mop�%��@�
�t����@�('�
��%�&����#*'�'
����'B	�C++'(	���u//15v:28/<p�1� #K�			�������������"�&
'�K�q���	�
�%kA��>	�'K�G�?� #K�			�������������������������		�
�%kA��>	�'K�G�(� #K�			����������� �������������		�
�%kA���%�>	�'K�G�*� #K�			�����������!�%�&�'���#(�'���)���*�%kA������A��>	�'K�G�	� F	
�@&�'�����#w�����%kA��>	�'K�G�+� #�q��$���������"�&
'�K�q���	�
�%kA��K� #�q��$���������������������		���	��H� #�q��$������� �������������		�
��	��'� #�q��$�������!�%#)����
��B'@@	����J
��55p�

xx

yz{|}~�y�����x

Page 9 of 49



���������	
�����	����	������	�����	���������	�������	������	������	���������	�����	��� ����	
�����	�������	��� ����	������	
� �����	����������	 !!

"#$%&'	"()	*+,

Page 10 of 49



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *+�,-�% %'*#�*%. �!"#$%&"'�(%$%'%. �/0123�45464217��	��8�9���:�*%;<�=,>�% &#"�'"'�� -�?�*"�#" "@�?'�A�������B
����("&"�C"#�DE�F7F2��G�9����������9����H�I��23�,&&")*�� -�;%?"�#").#*�. �#" "@% J��J#""�" *'�@%*K�=. *% �% J�,J#""�" *'�>%'*�/=,>3�-"'%J �*%. �&K� J"'�� -��J#""�" *'�*K�*�-%-� .*��""*�*K"�#" "@�?�-"�-?% "��'�?%'*"-�% �*K"�,J#""�" *'�>%'*L��F3�:�*%;<��J#""�" *�@%*K�=.��� %*<�,&*%. �M.�#-�=. *#�&*�N.O�FFP2DDQE�% �*K"���.� *�.;�R2E4D2ES5DL���13�:�*%;<��J#""�" *�@%*K�=�C#%??.�=.��� %*<�=.??"J"�(%'*#%&*�=. *#�&*�N.O�FFP24S5E�% �*K"���.� *�.;�R2F7E777L���43�:�*%;<��J#""�" *�@%*K�MTU�=�?%;.# %��>>=�=. *#�&*�N.O�FFP11F1E�% �*K"���.� *�.;�R177E777L��53�:�*%;<��J#""�" *�@%*K�P�*'. $%??"�>�@�=" *"#�=. *#�&*�N.O�FFP1Q77E�% �*K"���.� *�.;�RQSE7S7L���Q3�:�*%;<��J#""�" *���" -�" *�@%*K�V��%?%"'�% �U#� '%*%. �.;�!� *��=#�W�=.� *<�T &�=. *#�&*�N.O�FFP472QE�% &#"�'% J�*K"�V%'&�?�X"�#�/VX3�F7F26FF���.� *�C<�R5E577�;.#��� "@�VX�F7F26FF�*.*�?�.;�R55E777E�� -��� "@���?*%6<"�#�*.*�?�.;�RFQSE577�;.#�VXF72D6FFL��D3�:�*%;<��J#""�" *���" -�" *�@%*K�!� *��=#�W�=.��� %*<��"�?*K�=" *"#'�=. *#�&*�N.O�FFP4712E�% &#"�'% J�*K"�VX�F7F26FF���.� *�C<�R21EQ77�;.#��� "@�VX�F7F26FF�*.*�?�.;�R21QE777E�� -��� "@���?*%6<"�#�*.*�?�.;�RQQQE477�;.#�VXF72D6FF���03�:�*%;<��J#""�" *���" -�" *�@%*K�UK"�(%$"#'%*<�=" *"#�=. *#�&*�N.O�FFP4710E�% &#"�'% J�*K"�VX�F7F26FF���.� *�C<�R2E577�;.#��� "@�VX�F7F26FF�*.*�?�.;�R25E777E�� -��� "@���?*%6<"�#�*.*�?�.;�RD1E577�;.#�VXF72D6FFL���S3�U�Y"�#"?�*"-��&*%. 'E��'�#"&.��" -"-�C<�*K"�(%#"&*.#�.;����� �!"#$%&"'O��Z[�9������	���
���UK"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�/�!(3�#"\�"'*'�*K"�M.�#-�#�*%;<�D��J#""�" *'�@%*K�$�#%.�'�$" -.#'O�UK"'"��J#""�" *'�@"#"�. �*K"�=. *% �% J�,J#""�" *'�>%'*�/=,>3E�C�*�@"#"�"%*K"#�;�??<�"]"&�*"-�)�'*�*K"�-"�-?% "�'"*�C<�).?%&<�.#�*K"�;% �?� "J.*%�*"-���.� *�

_̂

àbcde�̀fg�hijk

Page 11 of 49



��������������	
�������������������������������� �!� ��"#$�"%"&$�����'�����������������	
�(��)*�"%"&+""�,�����-./�0�12������1�0���� �����1�0�+3 �, �� (�2���� ��4��� 4��� ������ �,��0����������2���	0���������	
�������$�1����0��������� ���,�0�� ���� ��2�4� ������������ ����������2�������	
�,�0���1��0�������������� ��(��� �,����(��4��2� �0���0����� ������	
�,�0�2�����(�2�����1��&$�"%"&5����6���21��&$�"%"&���(�����&%7��� ����0���0����� ������	
$�-./�����#8��� ����0���������(��� �,���1������6���21��&������� �����(������������������4��2� �0����9��:;<=<��� ����� �4������� 0�(������� �,����(��4��2� �0��� �� ����� ��4��2� �0�����4������1��� ����������0���0��� ��4��2� �0�����������������������	
���0�4 ������2�� ������������������ ��������� ��(��� �,��0��> ��������� 0����� �� ������(�0�����0�� ��������(������ ������� 0�� ���2����� ���������2� �0$����0���4��2� �0������1�� �(��������������� ��-./��0��?��0�� 4�����'�������(�������4��2� �0��@��0���4��2� �0������1�� ������ ���� �	�����2� ��	���@�����(������4��2� �0�-./��0��?��0�� 4����(������ ��(���������(���AB�> ��0�2� �0�� ������2� �2� �0������4��2����+�����4��2� �0C�)�2����0�� �@� 0���� $�.� �����D���22� ����-�������� ��0$�� ��@���/���0������ ����@����4��2� �0�,����'>@�����(� ���

�$���1�������22� ���������4��/�0����$�� ��E��0� ������
�,��� �������� 4+0�� �� 4�-./��4��2� �0������0������������������� ��0�����0��@����4��2� ��,������22� ����	���� �'�����0�(���2�4� ������� �����2� �0�� ���0�1�� 4������D���1��(���-./�����0�� 0�(������������ ��0�����0$�� �����0��4��2� ����0�0�4 �(��� �������� ����� �������0��������@�������0����2�� � 4��4��2� �0���������0������ ��� �4������� $�,�����-./�,����1� 4�1�(�������'����(����������,�� ���2���������F=����=�:�GHI��J�A���(������ ��(������4��2� �0� ������ �	�����2� ��	����0� ����0����� �� �������� ���K� ����)� ���� ��1���� �� ��(� �� 4�(�����0���4��2� �0��0���������0��1��0����� �����-./�)*�"%"&+""�1��4�����LJ��JM�=��N:���O:MHM�JP<Q�&�'�R��2���� 0����-������S�.�(���C���22� ����.�����T�+�A���(�� 4����0���4��2� �0�,��������,��� �� ������(����0�� 4�0�����0�� ��0�����0�(��������22� �������L�UH=JJM��U;V�A� ���W��0$�-�2� �.�����0�/�������XM��HHM��M��U;V�����0�!��Y������0$���� ���	�2� �0��������((�����9JJ��ZHM�J<V�

[\

]̂ _̀ab�]cd�efgg

Page 12 of 49



�� ��������	�
��	���		������	����� �������������������� ����������������������� � ���������!!�!���"#������ ���������!�$$���	��
�%�&� ����������$���'"#��� ����������$!��(������)��	*�+���	���� ����������$!,���-����	*��	�.� /0

123456�178�9:;0

Page 13 of 49



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *+�,-�% %'*#�*%. �!"#$%&"'�(%$%'%. �/0123�45464217��	��8�9���,&&")*�� -�:%;"�*<"�,  ��;�=<%;-�=�#"�("$";.)"#�:""�>").#*�?�������@
����("&"�A"#�BC�D7D2��E�9����������9����F�G��23�,&&")*�� -�H%;"�*<"�:%'&�;�I"�#�/:I3�D7D76D2��  ��;�=<%;-�=�#"�("$";.)"#�:""�#").#*J�� -��D3�(%#"&*����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�'*�HH�#"*�# �*.�*<"�K.�#-�L%*<�*<"��  ��;�=<%;-�=�#"�("$";.)"#�:""�#").#*�H.#�:I�D7D26DD�% �("&"�A"#�D7DDM��NO�9������	���
���PQR�STUVW�XRYZ[\R]�̂R_VỲURẀ�aSX̂ b�[]�YRcTR]̀[Wd�̀QR�efVYgh]�V__YfZVi�fj�̀QR��  ��;�=<%;-�=�#"�("$";.)"#�:""�#").#*�/==(:3�H.#�:I�D7D76D2�/=.� *k�=.-"�!"&*%. �25M743Ml<"�!*�*"�.H�=�;%H.# %��m%*%n�*%. �:""�,&*o,K�2p77�/�*�q.$M=Mrr�pp772/&3C�pp77p/A3/23�'*%)�;�*"'�*<�*�"�&<�;.&�;��n" &k�*<�*�#"s�%#"'�)�k�" *�.H���H""���t"�% H.#��*%. �)�A;%&;k��$�%;�A;"�"�&<�k"�#�L%*<% �207�-�k'��H*"#�*<"�;�'*�-�k�.H�*<"�H%'&�;�k"�#M�l<%'�#").#*�-"'&#%A"'�*<"�*k)"�.H�H""�&.;;"&*"-C�*<"���.� *�� -�<.L�*<"�H""�L�'�"u)" -"-�-�#% n�*<"�#").#*% n�)"#%.-M����
9v�������w �2xx2C�*<"�K.�#-��-.)*"-�*<"�=<%;-�=�#"�:""'�� -�yu�&*%. '�z#-% � &"�H.#�*<"�"u)� '%. C�&. '*#�&*%. C�.#�#" .$�*%. �.H�&<%;-�&�#"�H�&%;%*%"'�% �!� *��=#�{�=.� *kM�!�A'"s�" *;k�*<"�K.�#-��-.)*"-�n�%-";% "'�-"$";.)"-�Ak��!(�'*�HH�% �&..#-% �*%. �L%*<�*<"����� �!"#$%&"'�=.��%''%. C�')"&%Hk% n�*<�*�#"$" �"'�-"#%$"-�H#.��=<%;-�=�#"�("$";.)"#�:""'�A"��'"-�H.#�)#.|"&*'�*<�*�-%#"&*;k�% &#"�'"�.#�" <� &"�*<"�'�));k�.H�;%&" '"-�&<%;-�&�#"�% �!� *��=#�{�=.� *kM���w �D720C��'�)�#*�.H�*<"�l<#%$"�Ak�l<#""�w %*%�*%$"C�*<"�=.� *k�&. -�&*"-��� "u�'�� �;k'%'�.H�*<"�&<%;-�&�#"�H�&%;%*k�-"$";.)�" *�%�)�&*�H""M�l<%'�#").#*�-.&��" *"-�� -�s�� *%H%"-�*<"�;% t�n"'�A"*L"" �*<"� "L� . 6#"'%-" *%�;�� -�#"'%-" *%�;�-"$";.)�" *�% �!� *��=#�{�=.� *kC�*<"�-"�� -�H.#�&<%;-�&�#"�')�&"'�� -�*<"�&.'*�.H��%*%n�*% n�*<"�-"�� -�Ak�-"$";.)% n� "L�&<%;-�&�#"�')�&"'M�l<"� "u�'�#").#*��;'.�.�*;% "-�% H.#��*%. �*<�*�'<.�;-�A"�% &;�-"-�% �*<"�)�A;%&�==(:��  ��;�#").#*+�}�,�-"'&#%)*%. �.H�*<"�*k)"�.H�*<"�H""�� -�*<"���.� *�.H�*<"�H""J�}�l<"�A"n%  % n�� -�" -% n�A�;� &"�.H�*<"�H� -J�}�l<"���.� *�.H�H""'�&.;;"&*"-�� -�% *"#"'*�"�# "-J�}�w-" *%H%&�*%. �.H�*<"�%�)#.$"�" *'�&. '*#�&*"-J�}�l<"�H""'�"u)" -"-�*.�&. '*#�&*�*<"�%�)#.$"�" *J�}�l<"�)"#&" *�n"�.H�*.*�;�&.'*'�H� -"-�Ak�*<"�H""J�}�l<"��))#.u%��*"�-�*"�Ak�L<%&<�� k�&. '*#�&*%. �.H�)�A;%&�%�)#.$"�" *�L%;;�

~�

���������������

Page 14 of 49



������������	
������	���	��������	
�	�	
�����������������	�������	��������	�������������	�������������������	�����������������	����������
���	�������	��������������������������	
��������	��������� ��!
����"#�������������	�����$��������	
�������	��%�����������#&�'('()'*��!
���������	����������������	
��������	�������	��	
����+�������	�������	���������	
��,	�	����������������-�	�%�	����#�����	.�/�*0((��*��"������	�������	�������������������	����	
������ *��1������	����2��3����,��%����������$�����%3�4�56.�+���	����-��	�)�������$�����%�4�'6.�+���	���'��7��)1������	����2��3����8������4*�95.�+���	����:�	���4�;5.�+���	����1�	���.1��	�����	�4*�0(.�+���	����-������	����%.<	��=����	�����4�5;.�+���	��'���/�%�����%����������%�����������������>?���'('()?����'('*@�� ?���*A�'('(3����4**'A0BB�?����6(A�'('*3�4**5A(C;��6�������	�������	���������	����	��������� #����������	��3��4'(A''9�=�	����	�������3�4505�C��=���	�����	�����������������	������	���	���� 7.��;��#�����D�������	������	���	�����������	�� 4*0A0CB�0��E�����	�%�����	�	������	�����������	
������� 7.��5�������D���	����	������	���	������������������������	���%����������������	�������	��������	�������������	�������������������	� 7.��9��"������	���������	�������	��������������������������	
��������	� 7.���=	������	�����	���	
�	�	
����D	�����������
��������"���������#���������%�	��������	����%���������������
��������������	����$��������������$
���	
�����������
��������D���	���4*9(A(((A�$
��
������������������	����������������'6)'CA���������%����	
��������������$�����������	�����	
������	������F ���G ���HIJ�GK�1�������������	��������	
����"#��������������	
���%
�	
����"<E�!���	�#���A��������	������	�����������	������L�������#�������	����	������MKN�KOP G�Q����R�OIO�KS�T�

UV

WXYZ[\�W]̂�_̀à

Page 15 of 49



��������	
������������������������������������		�
�������������
��������	�
�����
������ �������!�������	
��������������"�������������������������!�����!�
���		�
����������
�!�����������������#$%&'(()*�%+,�-����.�

��/��������
��!�����
�!��
��0)12&&)3*)*�%+,���
����4��5���!���/�������6������
������7���!�
�
89

:;<=>?�:@A�BCD8

Page 16 of 49



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *+�,-�% %'*#�*%. �!"#$%&"'�(%$%'%. �/0123�45464217��	��8�9���,�" -�,:#""�" *'�;%*<�,=.-"�!"#$%&"'�� -��.�'% :�>�**"#'�?�������@
����("&"�="#�AB�C7C2��D�9����������9����E�F��23�,))#.$"���'&.)"�.G�;.#H���" -�" *�*.�&. *#�&*�I47J7�;%*<�,=.-"�!"#$%&"'B��*�� �� &<� :"-�*.*�K���.� *�.G�L2BC77B777B�*.�)#.$%-"�GK"M%=%K%*N�% �*<"�)#.$%'%. �.G�K� -K.#-�% &" *%$"'��KK.;"-�% �*<"��:#""�" *B�% &K�-% :�#"*#.�&*%$"��))K%&�*%. �.G�*<"���" -"-�*"#�'�*.�O�KN�2B�C7C2B�� -���*<.#%P"�*<"�(%#"&*.#�.G����� �!"#$%&"'�*.�"M"&�*"�*<"��:#""�" *Q�� �C3�,))#.$"���'&.)"�.G�;.#H���" -�" *�*.�&. *#�&*�I4700�;%*<��.�'% :�>�**"#'B��*�� �� &<� :"-�*.*�K���.� *�.G�LCBJRJBAR1B�*.�)#.$%-"�GK"M%=%K%*N�% �*<"�)#.$%'%. �.G�K� -K.#-�% &" *%$"'��KK.;"-�% �*<"��:#""�" *B�% &K�-% :�#"*#.�&*%$"��))K%&�*%. �.G�*<"���" -"-�*"#�'�*.�O�KN�2B�C7C2B�� -���*<.#%P"�*<"�(%#"&*.#�.G����� �!"#$%&"'�*.�"M"&�*"�*<"��:#""�" *Q��ST�9������	���
���U.��""*��#:" *� ""-'�G.#�<.�'% :��''%'*� &"�)#%.#�*.�*<"�&K.'�#"�.G�VWXY(62J�"M)� -"-�'<"K*"#�G�&%K%*%"'B�*<"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�/�!(3�" *"#"-�% *.��:#""�" *'�;%*<�,=.-"�!"#$%&"'�/,=.-"3�� -��.�'% :�>�**"#'�G.#�"�"#:" &N�#"<.�'% :�'"#$%&"'Q���!(�#"&.��" -'�*<"�Z.�#-��))#.$"���" -�" *'�*.�*<"�K� -K.#-�[\]̂\_[̀̂ a�bccdê f�[\�_ĝâ�bhî ĵ̂ \_a�_d�̂kl̂f[_̂�lbi_[][lb\_am�bn[c[_o�_d�â]pî�)"#�� " *�<.�'% :B�#"*#.�&*%$"��))K%&�*%. �.G�*<"���" -"-�*"#�'�*.�O�KN�2B�C7C2Q����
9q�������W �>�#&<�C1B�C7C2B�*<"�Z.�#-��))#.$"-��:#""�" *'�;%*<�,=.-"�� -��.�'% :�>�**"#'�*.�)#.$%-"�"�"#:" &N�#�)%-�#"<.�'% :�'"#$%&"'�� -�#"K�*"-��&*%$%*%"'�G.#�<.�'"<.K-'�'*�N% :�% �"M)� -"-�VWXY(62J�'<"K*"#'�*.��.$"�% *.�'�'*�% �=K"�)"#�� " *�<.�"'Q��!% &"�*<"'"��:#""�" *'�;"#"��))#.$"-B�*<"��.�'% :�,�*<.#%*N�.G�*<"�V.� *N�.G�!� *��V#�PB�% �&..#-% �*%. �;%*<��!(B�#"&"%$"-��))#.M%��*"KN�177� ";�r�"#:" &N��.�'% :�X.�&<"#'�G#.��*<"�G"-"#�K�:.$"# �" *Q�U<"'"�$.�&<"#'��#"�="% :���-"��$�%K�=K"�*.�<.�'"<.K-'�'*�N% :�% �"M)� -"-�VWXY(62J�'<"K*"#'Q�,'���#"'�K*B��.'*�.G�*<"�<.�'"<.K-'�;%KK�#"&"%$"�� �r�"#:" &N��.�'% :�X.�&<"#B�#"-�&% :�*<"���.� *�.G�)#.:#���G� -'� ""-"-�*.�)�N�G.#�)�#*%&%)� *�<.�'% :�&.'*'Q�����.;"$"#B�*<"�)#.:#���G� -'���-"��$�%K�=K"�=N�*<"�<.�'% :�$.�&<"#'�;"#"� ""-"-�*.��--#"''�� �% &#"�'% :� ""-�G.#�K� -K.#-�% &" *%$"'Q�U<"'"��:#""�" *'B��'�.#%:% �KKN��))#.$"-B�% &K�-"-�')"&%G%&�&#%*"#%��=N�;<%&<��$�%K�=K"�G� -% :�&.�K-�="��'"-�*.�% &" *%$%P"�K� -K.#-'�*.�#" *�*.�)#.:#���)�#*%&%)� *'Q�U<"�)�#��"*"#'�.G�*<"'"�% &" *%$"'�

st

uvwxyz�u{|�}t~�

Page 17 of 49



����������		
������������������������	����������������������������
������������������������������������������������������
�����������������������������������������������������	����������������������������������	���	�����������������������������	���	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������	���	����� !�"# $!%&!'�( ')�*')&+�,&-�.+*$+"%/� !�')&�0*1!'-�'*�2"3 # '"'&�."+' 3 ."!'/4�"''" !%&!'����������������������������56789:;:�< !3&�')&�*+ $ !"#�=*"+>4/�"..+*?"#�*2�')&/&�"$+&&%&!'/@�AB*>&@�C*1/ !$�D"''&+/@�"!>�C<E4/�C*1/ !$�2*+�C&"#')�F"? $"' *!�'&"%�)"?&�&!+*##&>�"�3*%B !&>�GHI�)*1/&)*#>/@����JKL����������	���������������������������	�������	�����MN��������	�����������������������������������������O�����������������������������������������������������������������	�������������������������������������������������������	��������������������	����	���	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������	���	�����������������������������������������P������������������������������������������������		���	�����	��
���������������������	���	����������������		����������������������������O����������	�����	��
���������
��������������������		���	��	���	����������������		���������')&/&�3*!'+"3'&>�.+*$+"%/4�"B # '-�'*�&Q.&> '&�."+' 3 ."!'/4�"33&//�'*�.&+%"!&!'����������R��������		
���������������������P����������������	
������������������������������S�	
�T��JNJT��������������������������
����������������������������������C<E4/�"..+*?"#�*2� !3+&"/&>�#"!>#*+>� !3&!' ?&/�>1&�'*�')&�B"++ &+�2*+�')&/&�3*!'+"3'&>�������������������
�	������������������	���	���������������������
�������	�������������������������������������������
������������������������������������P������������������������������������������������������������������������	
�����U;676V;78�WXY7VZ�O���������������		�������[�����������		����������������
�������	�������\����������������������������������������������������	�������������R��������������]����������]�������̂��R]_���������������	�̀�������
���	�������a����b�������c�����d�	����R���^̀�ab�c_����R]��		����������������������	���������������������R��������������d��	��̀�����]������������������̀�ab�c��		����������������������	�����������������������������e�������d�����d����������������������������O�����������������������������������	�̀�������
���������c�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	���	���������������������������������������������������R�������������f�g��hiNKN�j� k����lam�n�
f�LKTJNNboJLpT����������e������f�g��hiNpp�j� ������bNTf�k����lam�n�
f�LKTJNNboJLpT�j� ������bNJf�k����lam�n�
f�LKTJNNboJLpT��qZr7Zst;V�u876�v8sXs6Zw:x�J���̂R�������	���������f�����	�������_�b�������������������R��������������������������e�����������������������������������������������	�������������������������

yz

{|}~���{����z��

Page 18 of 49



�������������	
���	�������������	��������	���
		�	�������������	��	
���	����������������  !"����#"!��!���$%&�����'��(����
	��	����	'	���	����������
	��	�������������'��(����)*+,-../0�+12�3���(�4�

��5�6�����	
���	��7�
	���
��8/9:,,/;0/0�+12�<�
'���=��>�'�����5�<���(���������
����	�?@@��	
��A..B9C,/;.D2�B� ��
		�	���E�FGHII�6������4���	
��336���	���	���J�K	����L��� ��
		�	���E�FGHMH�����	�3N>���	���	���J�K	����L��� �74HOM�OOFGHII�6������4���	
���� �74EOM�OOFGHMH�����	�
PQ

RSTUVW�RXY�ZQ[\

Page 19 of 49



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *+�,-�% %'*#�*%. �!"#$%&"'�(%$%'%. �/0123�45464217��	��8�9���,))#.$"�,:#""�" *�;%*<��.�'% :�,�*<.#%*=�.>�*<"�?.� *=�.>�!� *��?#�@�A�������B
����("&"�C"#�DE�F7F2��G�9����������9����H�I��,))#.$"��:#""�" *�;%*<��.�'% :�,�*<.#%*=�.>�*<"�?.� *=�.>�!� *��?#�@�% �*<"���.� *�.>�J51E547�*.��-�% %'*"#���K� -K.#-�#%'L��%*%:�*%. �>� -�� -���*<.#%@"�*<"�(%#"&*.#�.>����� �!"#$%&"'�*.�"M"&�*"�*<"��:#""�" *N��OP�9������	���
����!(�%'�" *"#% :�% *.�� ��:#""�" *�;%*<�*<"��.�'% :�,�*<.#%*=�.>�*<"�?.� *=�.>�!� *��?#�@�/�.�'% :�,�*<.#%*=3�*.��-�% %'*"#���K� -K.#-�#%'L��%*%:�*%. �>� -N�Q<"�#%'L��%*%:�*%. �>� -�)#.$%-"'�� �% &" *%$"�>.#�� % &.#).#�*"-�!� *��?#�@�?.� *=�K� -K.#-�)�#*%&%)�*%. �% ��.�'% :�,�*<.#%*=�#" *�K��''%'*� &"�)#.:#��'�C=�.>>"#% :�*.�&.$"#���).#*%. �.>�-���:"'�.#�.*<"#�"M)" '"'�% &�##"-�C=�)�#*%&%)�*% :�K� -K.#-'�*<�*�"M&""-�*<"�'"&�#%*=�-").'%*�>.#���� %*N�(�"�*.�*#� '%*%. % :�.$"#'%:<*�.>�*<%'��:#""�" *�>#.��*<"�?.� *=�.>�!� *��?#�@�RK�  % :�(")�#*�" *�/RK�  % :3�*.�*<"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�/�!(3E�STUVWXYZT[�T\�Y]Ẑ�\ẐS_W�̀X_ab̂�_caXXUX[Y�d_̂�eXW_̀Xe�XfX[�Y]Tgc]�Y]X�Z[YX[eXe��:#""�" *�'*�#*�;�'�h�K=�2E�F7F2N��
9i�������Q<"��.�'% :�,�*<.#%*=���% *�% '���K� -K.#-�#%'L��%*%:�*%. �>� -�*.�" &.�#�:"�K� -K.#-�)�#*%&%)�*%. �% �%*'�#" *�K��''%'*� &"�)#.:#��'N�Q<"�>� -�% &K�-"'�&. *#%C�*%. '�>#.��K.&�K�j�#%'-%&*%. '�&.�)K"-�;%*<���*&<% :�>� -'�>#.��*<"��.�'% :�,�*<.#%*=N�Q<"�#%'L��%*%:�*%. �>� -�&� �&.$"#�-���:"�&��'"-�C=�*" � *'E�� )�%-�#" *�K�C�K� &"'��>*"#���*" � *�$�&�*"'���� %*E�� -�'.�"�$�&� &=�K.''�-�"�*.�K"�'"�*"#�% �*%. '�.#�"M)%#�*%. '�*<�*��#"� .*�&.$"#"-�C=�*<"�'"&�#%*=�-").'%*N�Q<"���M%������.� *�)�=�CK"�%'�J5E777�)"#�� %*k*" � *N�l>�*<"�J5E777E�JFE577�&.�"'�>#.��K.&�K�j�#%'-%&*%. �K�&. *#%C�*%. '�� -�*<"�.*<"#�JFE577�>#.��*<"��.�'% :�,�*<.#%*=N�����%'*.#%&�KK=E�*<"�?.� *=�.>�!� *��?#�@�<�'���-"�&. *#%C�*%. '�*.�*<"�#%'L��%*%:�*%. �>� -�>.#�)�#*%&%)�*% :�K� -K.#-'�% �*<"�� % &.#).#�*"-��#"�'�.>�*<"�?.� *=�*<#.�:<�� ��:#""�" *�C"*;"" �RK�  % :�� -�*<"��.�'% :�,�*<.#%*=N��m%*<�*<"�&#"�*%. �.>��� ";��.�'% :�>.#��"�K*<�(%$%'%. �% ��!(E�RK�  % :�� -��!(��:#""-�*.�*#� '%*%. �*<"��� �:"�" *�� -�.$"#'%:<*�.>�*<%'��:#""�" *�*.��!(N����
������(�"�*.�*<"�*#� '%*%. �.>��� �:"�" *�� -�.$"#'%:<*�.>�*<%'��:#""�" *�>#.��RK�  % :�*.��!(E� ":.*%�*%. '�;%*<�*<"��.�'% :�,�*<.#%*=�� -�&.�)K"*%. �.>�*<"��:#""�" *�;"#"�-"K�="-N�Q<"#">.#"E��!(�%'�'""L% :���*<.#%@�*%. �*.�"M"&�*"�*<%'��:#""�" *�

nn

opqrst�ouv�wxyz

Page 20 of 49



�����������	
�����������	
���������������
�������	����������������������������������
�������������������������������������������������������������� ���!�"�����#������������������������������	
����������
�����������������	�������������$������������������������������%����������������	����������������������������������������������������
������
�����&������	������������������		�������������
�������������������������������������!������&�������
�'()*'+,*�,-./�0-1-2(1-+)�34)*5�.466+,1-)2�178�9+4)1:;.�833+,1.�1+�3-)*�()*�0(-)1(-)�.1(<'���	��=��������������������	���#�������������������$��������	����������>?@A@B?AC�DEFABG�H���������������		�������I������������		����������������
������	����������H���J���������K���	�!������&		��������LJK!&M���������	
��������J	������"�������������������		����������������������	������������������������$�����������������������������!������&�������
�������������
������������� ��JK!&������������������	
������������J	�������������JK!&���������		�������������������������������
���������������������������!������&�������
�������������
������������� ��N� O���#PQK�R�
S�TU����PV�T%���WGXAGYZ?B�[CA@�\CYEY@G]̂_���&��&�������	��!�����S�K�����������������!��������"�&�������	��!�����S�!���	��������!�"�����������������������!������&�������
�������������	���	���������������������������=������������
���������������������������������������������������������������
��6̀6,+a-)2�17-.�(2,8808)1�34,178,.�178�9+4)1:;.�.1,(182-b�2+('.�+3�,8*4b-)2�<(,,-8,.�1+���������	����������������$����������������������������������	��������������WcdE?GGYe�dfg�h���
�i�������!��������������"���������jYBkEEY@eYe�dfg����	������J�	������������
�&��������������l��������mGGABnEY@Ĝg�A� &��������=�!������&�������
�h��$�i���������L����M�

oo

pqrstu�pvw�xyz{

Page 21 of 49



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *+�,-�% %'*#�*%. �!"#$%&"'�(%$%'%. �/0123�45464217��	��8�9���:;*" -�<%�%*"-�*"#��).'%*%. �-�"�*.�'="<*"#�";*" '%. '�>�������?
����("&"�@"#�AB�C7C2��D�9����������9����E�F��23�G�*%HI�*="�";*" '%. �.H�5AJ7�H�<<6*%�"�"K�%$�<" *�/LM:3�<%�%*"-6*"#��).'%*%. '�% �*="����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�/�!(3�% �*="�NOPQ(�R %*�Q -";�1S2177�*.�% &<�-"+�0J7�N<"#%&�<�!�)"#$%'.#'�QQB�2CJ7�N<"#%&�<�!�)"#$%'.#'�QB�2CJ7�N<"#T'�QQQB�2SJ7�N<"#T'�QQB�2J7�,-�% %'*#�*%$"�,%-"B�1J7�U#.V#���N..#-% �*.#'B�2J7�,''%'*� *����� �!"#$%&"'�, �<I'*B�� -�2J7�W" *�<��"�<*=�N<%" *�!)"&%�<%'*�� *%<�X� "�17B�C7CCB�*.�&. *% �"�*.�'�)).#*�"�"#V" &I�'="<*"#�#"'). '"�� -�#"6=.�'% V�"HH.#*'�#"<�*"-�*.�NOPQ(62SJ��C3�,))#.$"�*="��<*"# �*"�'*�HH% V�.H�2SJ7�N<"#T�QQ�� -�2CJ7�N<"#T�QQQ�).'%*%. '��*�*="�N<"#T�QYQQYQQQ�<"$"<'�*.��<<.Z�H.#�H<";%@%<%*I�% �'*�HH% VJ��13�,))#.$"�*="�&. $"#'%. �.H�2J7�LM:�<%�%*"-6*"#��!#J����� �!"#$%&"'�, �<I'*�).'%*%. �*.���)"#�� " *�).'%*%. �% �*="��.�'% V�H.#��"�<*=�R %*�Q -";�1S2C77J��[\�9������	���
����!(�#"K�"'*'�*="�].�#-�#�*%HI�*="�*"#��-�*"�.H�5AJ7�LM:�<%�%*"-6*"#��).'%*%. '�� -��))#.$"�*="��<*"# �*"�'*�HH% V�.H�2SJ7�N<"#T�QQ�� -�2CJ7�N<"#T�QQQ�).'%*%. '�*.���% *�% �*="�"�"#V" &I�'="<*"#�#"'). '"�*.�*="�NOPQ(62S�)� -"�%&�� -�*="��''.&%�*"-�#"=.�'% V�"HH.#*J�M="'"�).'%*%. '�Z%<<�)#.$%-"�&. *% �"-�'*�@%<%*I�*.�*="�#"'). '"�H.#�*="�)� -"�%&�% &<�-% V�-"&#"�'% V�*="�#%'T�H.#�NOPQ(62S�*#� '�%''%. ���. V�)".)<"�";)"#%" &% V�=.�"<"'' "''J�M="�";*" '%. �Z%<<��<'.��<<.Z�&�##" *�)�#*%&%)� *'�*.�#"��% �'="<*"#"-�Z=%<"�"HH.#*'�*.�="<)�*="��.@*�% �)"#�� " *�=.�"'�&. *% �"J�,--%*%. �<<IB��!(�#"K�"'*'�*="�&. $"#'%. �.H�. "�LM:�<%�%*"-6*"#��!#J����� �!"#$%&"'�, �<I'*�).'%*%. �*.���)"#�� " *�).'%*%. �Z%*=% �*="��.�'% V�H.#��"�<*=�(%$%'%. J��
9̂�������!% &"�*="�'*�#*�.H�*="�NOPQ(62S�)� -"�%&�#"'). '"B��!(�=�'�=%#"-�.$"#�477�";*#�6="<)�"�)<.I""'�� -�A1J7�LM:�<%�%*"-6*"#��).'%*%. '�*.�'�)).#*�*="�<.&�<�NOPQ(�#"'). '"�� -�'="<*"#�.)"#�*%. 'J�M.�-�*"B�*="'"�'*�HH�=�$"�'�)).#*"-�.$"#�2B177�)".)<"�";)"#%" &% V�=.�"<"'' "''�*.�'="<*"#�% �)<�&"�� -Y.#�%'.<�*"YK��#� *% "�'�H"<IJ�O �("&"�@"#�0B�C7C7B��!(�#"K�"'*"-�45J7�LM:�<%�%*"-6*"#��&<�''%H%&�*%. '�� -�. �L"@#��#I�C1B�C7C2B��!(�#"K�"'*"-�� ��--%*%. �<�C0J7�LM:�<%�%*"-6*"#��&<�''%H%&�*%. '�*.�'�)).#*�'="<*"#�.)"#�*%. 'J�M=#.�V=�*="�L_�C7C26CC�!�))<"�" *�<�]�-V"*�)#.&"''B�*="�N.� *I�,-�% %'*#�*%$"�OHH%&"�#"K�"'*"-�";*" '%. �.H�*="�45J7�LM:�<%�%*"-6*"#��).'%*%. '�� *%<�!")*"�@"#�17B�C7C2J�,*�*=�*�*%�"B�*="�&. *% �"-�H� -% V�*=#.�V=�L:W,B�,�"#%&� �G"'&�"�U<� �,&*�.H�C7C2B�� -�*="�N�<%H.# %��!*�*"�OHH%&"�.H�:�"#V" &I�!"#$%&"�Z�'�� &"#*�% J�]�'"-�. �*="�T .Z<"-V"�.H�*="��$�%<�@<"�H� -% V�H.#�)� -"�%&�#"'). '"�� -�

à

bcdefg�bhi�j̀kl

Page 22 of 49



��������	
�������
���
����
����
��
��������
�������
����������
���
�������
��
��������
���������
�����	�
����
��
�����

��
���
 ����
��
���!
������	
���
"����
�����#��
�
������
��
���������
�����������
�	��������
��
�������
�
�����$�����#�
������
�����
��
�
%�������	
&�#��
'����	�
(���$��
�!
���!
)�
����#������
��#�
������
����
�
*(+,�
���������
�������
��
���������
������	�
��
��
-�#��$��
!
���!
�����
���
!./
����������
���
!/�
����#������
��������	
��
*(+,�0!1
2��3���
%�����4
������
�����
������
"������
���4
���
(���$��
���!
���
%�������	
&�#�
������
������
$������
!�0!5
����������
���
�����
��#�
����
���������
������	�
�����	
����
����
������
���
*����4
���
$���
	�������4
������	
*(+,�0�������
���������	
���	�����
%�������	
��#�
�����
��#�
�������
��
������	
������������
������
���������
�����
���4
����
������
�������	
���������
������	�

(��4
���
*(+,�0�������
2��3���
%�����4
�����
����
������
��
���������
��
��
�����$��
!
���!
����
�
���$����
�������
�������4
��
!.6
�����������

,�
78
����0�!
���
�����
���
7'9
�������0����
���
�����
���#����
����4��
��������
��
���
������	
���
������
��#�����
��
�������
���
��0������	
�������
���
���
*(+,�0!1
�������
	������


:;<=>?@?
79 �
�������A�����
���
���0���	��	���
���������	
�������
���
��������
�����
�����
!
���!
���
��
�������
�������
��
�������
����������
����
������
'��
*����4
��
�����
*��A
�����
���#����
���
2������	
�����������
��#�
�����$������
��
������
���0����
*(+,�0�������
�������
������	
��
�������
���
���������
��
*(+,�
�������
����������
$�4���
���
79 �
�������A�����
�������
9��������
��
���
��������	
%�����4
�������
�����
$�4���
�����
!
���!
���������
���
����������
��
����
%�������	
&�#�
���������
�����
��
���������
������	
����	
��������	
	������
,�
����
���������
�������
�������4
�����	
���
������
�������



����������
��
���
���������
��
���
�������0����
���������
���
�����#��
��
���
���������
�������	
��
���������
��
��������4
��
����	���
���
�������
��
*(+,�0!1
����	
������
�����������	
��������
��
������
*(+,�
�������
����������
���
��
��������
���
���$�$����4
��
����
������#�
�����
��
���������
�����
����	
�������
�������
	������
���
����
�����A�
�����
�������0����
���������
��
�������
�������	
���$����4
��������
�������
����������
���
����������
��������	
�������
��
$���
-����
���
�����
*����4�


���
��
���������	
�����
��
����	�
#������
������	
���
������
	����
������	
���
��	���	
���#����
���
���
����������
��	���	
��#����
��
�������
���#�����	
���
�������0����
���
�����
���#����
����4��
��������
��
�
���������
��������
������
���
������	
���
������
��#������

B@;<;C@<=
DEF<CG
'��
����
��
������
5)
�������
����
���������
����
������4
H
����
����
��
I�1../�)
���
����
$�
���#����
�����	�
79 �
���
��������
%�����
2���
���
�����
������	
�������
���
���
*(+,�0!1
���������	
���
��������	
��������
��������	
$��
���
�������
��
9���	���4
���������
J����
H
*�����#����
K9�J0*+L
���
*�������4
��#��������
"����
J����0*�����#����
K*�"J0*+L
�����
���
�����	�
����
��
����
���
(���$��
!5
����
��������#��4�
7�����	
���
���
���#�����
�������0����
��������
��
���������
��


MN

OPQRST
OUV
WMWX

Page 23 of 49



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� !�"#$%�&'!(�)'"*"(�+,-�	�.��/���������0��1������2�3����45�1������67��4�	�8��/���������0��1������2�3����45�/������4�3�������
�9�.���������1�����5�1������������:;;<=>?@A�BCD�DEBD@F?=@�=G�BCD�H?I?BDJ�BD<I�;=F?B?=@F�GK<BCD<F�BCD�L=K@BMNF�FB<OBDA?P�;HO@������������������7��4Q��������4���������������������������4����������������0����������������������0����������������������RS����������Q��������4�0���������Q�������������������������������.����0����������0�����������������T�6������U�����3���1�����3��0����.���4���;=F?B?=@�V?BC?@�BCD�W=KF?@A�G=<�WDOHBC�X?>?F?=@�GK<BCD<F�L=K@BMNF�FB<OBDA?P�;HO@�A=OH�=G��������������������������������������������������������������������������YZ*$��"[�Z\]��̂��4�_����Q�1�����3��0����9��������̀"%a**"(["[�Z\]�/������b��c������Q�/����4�.��������0��d�������e��!%f*"(�,]�!� c�������9�����

gh

ijklmn�iop�qgqq

Page 24 of 49



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *+�,�)-./�" *�� 0�1" "2%*�!"#$%&"'�(%$%'%. �34567�898:865;��	��<�=���>�*?.#%@"�,A>�A.� 0�B�C#� *�>))-%&�*%. �D�������E
����("&"�F"#�GH�B;B6��I�=����������=����J�K��67�A�*%2/�*?"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *��))-%&�*%. �2.#�*?"�L %*"0�!*�*"'�M#"�'�#/�(")�#*�" *�,�"#N" &/�A" *�-�>''%'*� &"�A.� 0�B�2� 0% NO�� 0��B7�>0.)*�#"'.-�*%. ���*?.#%@% N�*?"����� �!"#$%&"'�(%#"&*.#�.#�0"'%N ""�*.�" *"#�% *.�� ��N#""�" *�P%*?�*?"�!*�*"�2.#�*?"�(")�#*�" *�.2��.�'% N�� 0�Q.��� %*/�RSTSUVWXSYZ�ZV�[\X]Y]̂ZS_�Z̀S�aVbYZcd̂�eXS_fSYgc�hSYZ[U�î ]̂̂Z[YgS�hVbY\�j��P�#0H�� 0�*�k"�.*?"#��&*%. '� "&"''�#/�2.#�&. *% �"0�)�#*%&%)�*%. �% �*?"�!*�*"�A" *�-�>''%'*� &"�l#.N#��m��no�=������	���
���(�"�*.��#N" *�*%�"-% "'�*.�'�F�%*�*?"�#"p�%#"0�2"0"#�-�N#� *��))-%&�*%. H�*?"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�3�!(7H�% �&..#0% �*%. �P%*?�*?"�Q.� */�>0�% %'*#�*%$"�q22%&"�3Q>q7H�'�F�%**"0���N#� *��))-%&�*%. �2.#�*?"�,�"#N" &/�A" *�-�>''%'*� &"�l#.N#���A.� 0�B�3,A>�B7�� 0�P�'��P�#0"0��� .*�*.�"r&""0���.� *�.2�s6;HG6tH65tuB;u��!(�%'�#"p�"'*% N�*?"�1.�#0�#�*%2/�*?"�N#� *��))-%&�*%. u��!(�%'��-'.�#"p�"'*% N�*?"�1.�#0��0.)*���#"'.-�*%. ���*?.#%@% N�*?"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�3�!(7�*.�" *"#�% *.�� ��N#""�" *�P%*?�*?"�Q�-%2.# %��(")�#*�" *�.2��.�'% N�� 0�Q.��� %*/�("$"-.)�" *�vwaRx�ZV�_SgS]TS�Z̀S�aVbYZcd̂�ehi�j�ybY\̂�\]_SgZUc�y_VX�Z̀S�zY]ZS\�{Z[ZŜ�RSW[_ZXSYZ�.2�*?"�M#"�'�#/�3M#"�'�#/7�� 0��0�% %'*"#�*?"�2� 0'�. �F"?�-2�.2�*?"�Q.� */�2.#�*?"�F" "2%*�.2�Q.� */�#"'%0" *'�*?#.�N?�*?"�!*�*"�A" *�-�>''%'*� &"�l#.N#���3A>l7u�>'�)�#*�Vy�Z̀S�[f_SSXSYZ|�{Z[ZS�hi}�~]UU�]̂̂bS���j�|�������Vy�Z̀S�aVbYZcd̂�ehi�j�ZV�Z̀S�Q.� */�*.��0�% %'*"#�*?"�-.&�-�A>l�)#.N#��H�P?%&?��!(�P%--�% &.#).#�*"�% *.�*?"��%'&�-��"�#�B;BB:B5�F�0N"*u���� 0% N�P%--�?"-)�'�)).#*�&. *% �"0�-.&�-�&.��� %*/�"22.#*'�*.�)#"$" *�?.�"-"'' "''�% *.� "r*�2%'&�-�/"�#u��
=��������!"&*%. �9;6�.2�*?"�Q. '.-%0�*"0�>))#.)#%�*%. '�>&*�.2�B;B6H�" �&*"0�% �("&"�F"#�B;B;H�&#"�*"0�� 0��))#.)#%�*"0�2� 0'�2.#��� �*%. �-�,�"#N" &/�A" *�-�>''%'*� &"�3,A>7�l#.N#��u�M?"�,A>�)#.N#���&.$"#'�)�'*�0�"�#" *�� 0��*%-%*%"'��'�P"--��'�-%�%*"0�)#.')"&*%$"�#" *�� 0��*%-%*/��''%'*� &"�2.#�-.P"#:% &.�"�#" *"#'u�M?"'"�2� 0'H�#"2"##"0�*.��'�,A>�6H�P"#"�0%'*#%F�*"0�. ��� ��#/�B9H�B;B6�*.�'*�*"'�� 0�-.&�-�N.$"# �" *'�P%*?�WVWbU[Z]VŶ�Vy�j��|����V_�XV_S|�]YgUb\]Yf�{[YZ[�a_b��aVbYZc���̀S�aVbYZcd̂�}U[YY]Yf�(")�#*�" *�3l-�  % N7�P�'�*?"�-.&�-��0�% %'*#�*.#�.2�,A>�6u��q ��� ��#/�B4H�B;B6H�!*�*"�!" �*"�1%--��6�"'*�F-%'?"0���'*�*"P%0"�A" *�-�>''%'*� &"�

��

���������������

Page 25 of 49



���������	
�������������������������������������������������� ��!������� ���� ��!�������������"�������� �������#����	
���������	
��������$����������������%	
����������&�$�������'��������� ��(�������� ���)���� ��!���������������"������"�������������	
������*���+��������� ��,����-������������������� ������������������%	
��%	
�����������.����$���������� ��
��������	�����������
��������������
������/��������� ��!���������"�����������""�������������%	
������������������
���������������� ��!�����������.����������������� ������#����#����������������0���������������1���+�2��'2�������%	
�����������$��� ��-����������������� ������������������� ��%	
����#�������
������������� ��!�������#������� �������������������������$��#����� ��-������������3!4������������ �����������"��������56789:9;9<=�79�7>?@AB6>�786�C9D@7=EA�FGH�I�?J?>:�79�KCL�B9>�M@N;DAM9@�M@�786�O7?76�	
������� �������� ��!��������������.����"����������� ���#������������������� ��������	
����- ��������"�����������������������$��� ��-������������3!4����������P�.��$����������������� ��!������������ ���)��� ��-��������.���� ������� ���(�������������������:MAQD>A6�786�C9D@7=EA�FGH�I�?J?>:�:M>6N7;=�79�KCLR�KCL�79�?:5M@MA76>�786A6�BD@:A�?A�"�������� ��������	
�����$� �������� ��!���������������3!4��������������������0���������������1'���/S/�������� ��!�����������""���� ������������"��.��������������������� ����0����������������3�4�#���������"������� ���������������� ��&������T��������U�'�$������.���� �����������������������$������"��������� ������U�������������������������$���������������""����%	
���"������������� ����������������%	
���������������.����������#����$�������������������� ��������������������"����������&T�����U�'�����VWXYZ[\[�
�����P�.��$���������� ��%	
���� $����������3!4����������!��)�!�������""��������������������+S���""���������������.���#�� ��.���1'���������������]���������������-��������S�̂� ���� ����� �.��$�������.���#�� �����.���������������������������1���'�������1�������'2����������"������� ���� ����������������������]��������������������
���"���������� ��(���
����%]�����
�������.��#�����.��������.����������������� �����$������ ���� �����������������������������������- ������"��������������������!��)�!������ ���2�'/S� ���� �����$� �������� ���������#�� �����.�����������$���������1'�+��������������������������������������1�'�̂*��������������������3�4����������������������������""���������"������"���������� ��������%	
�"�������#�� �%	
����������������������������)������������"��.���������� ���0�������%	
�������������������� ��������������������.����3�4�#����$��� ���������"���������������������%	
�������������������$��������#�� �� �����������4�"���������# ��#�����.��.������%	
����%��������$�� �� ���������������3��������.�����4�"�������������������������0�����������"��.��������� ����������������������������������� ��%	
�"����������� ������������"��.����������_\WXẀ\XY�abcX̀d�- �������������������������������������#�� ������"�����%	
��������������- ��!������#���������.��1'���/S/�������%	
����������������3!4������""������������"��������������� ������������"��.�������#��e������&T���U�'���3�4�#���������"������� ���������������� ��&������T��������U�'�$������.���� �����������������������$������"��������

fg

hijklm�hno�pfpq

Page 26 of 49



���������	�
����������������������������������������������������  �!��"�#�����"���$ ���� ��������� ����������%���"��������� ��������&'���(���)��"��������%����������� ����������������%������*�� �& ������ �"�& ��+�%��'�����,�����-��.������& ��/�%���"0�"�� �.1��2-�.������& ��/�%���"�3�$%��%�� ��� ������������%����"�����%,,�����������& ����%���"���������� �����������4���.������& ��/�%���"0�5�� �6-�/��� ��������3�7(,�������*�����������%������� �����������������������%���"����&� ��'8����9:�����;�:<=�>���'�?�����0�/%����#��*�����6���������@�	A����;�;�:<=�+�� ���B8�$� �����0�+�%��'�.�����������*��C��������D���	E�����=��� >��� %�����3�7���"���'�>���� �.����������$��"����17>.F2�1�#�"�2�&� ."��������3�+./+6�FG�3�7>.$�GHHHI�1�#�"�2��� .,, ��������3�7���"���'�>���� �.����������$��"���17>.F2�

JK

LMNOPQ�LRS�TJTU

Page 27 of 49



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *+�,-�% %'*#�*%. �!"#$%&"'�(%$%'%. �/0123�45464217��	��8�9���:�*%;<��(,=�>"#*%;%&�*%. �?"**"#@�,&&")*�A � *%&%)�*"-�:"$" �"�� -�,�" -�>,B6�(,=��C#""�" *�D�������E
����("&"�F"#�G@�H7H2��I�9����������9����J�K��23�:�*%;<�*L"�'�F�%''%. �.;���C#� *��))M%&�*%. �*.��&&")*�;� -% C�;#.��*L"�>�M%;.# %��(")�#*�" *�.;�!.&%�M�!"#$%&"'�% �*L"���.� *�.;�N2@57H@24H�;.#��.�'% C�� -�(%'�F%M%*<�,-$.&�&<�=#.C#���/�(,=3�;� -'O�� H3�,-.)*���#"'.M�*%. ��&&")*% C�� -��))#.)#%�*% C�� � *%&%)�*"-�#"$" �"�% �*L"���.� *�.;�N2H1@P25@�;.#�*L"��-�% %'*#�*%. �.;�;% � &%�M�)�<�" *'�*.�'�)).#*��(,=�)�#*%&%)� *'�*.��**�% �� -���% *�% �L.�'% CO���13�,))#.$"�� ���" -�" *�*.��C#""�" *�HHQ4751�R%*L�>.��� %*<�,&*%. �B.�#-�.;�!� *��>#�S�>.� *<@�T &U@�% &#"�'% C�*L"��C#""�" *�F<�NH2G@7PH�*.��� "R�*.*�M���.� *�.;�N477@777�;.#��.�'% C�� -�(%'�F%M%*<�,-$.&�&<�=#.C#���L.�'% C�)�<�" *��''%'*� &"O�� -���*L.#%S"�*L"�(%#"&*.#�.;����� �!"#$%&"'�*.�"V"&�*"�*L"��C#""�" *�� -�*�W"�#"M�*"-��&*%. 'U��XY�9������	���
���Z.�)#.$%-"�L.�'% C�'�)).#*�� -�" '�#"�&. *% �%*<�.;�"V%'*% C�'"#$%&"'@�*L"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�/�!(3�#"[�"'*'�*L"�B.�#-�#�*%;<���C#� *��))M%&�*%. �R%*L�*L"�>�M%;.# %��(")�#*�" *�.;�!.&%�M�!"#$%&"'�/>(!!3�*.��&&")*����.�'% C�� -�(%'�F%M%*<�,-$.&�&<�=#.C#���/�(,=3��R�#-�% �*L"���.� *�.;�N2@57H@24HU�,�#"M�*"-�#"'.M�*%. ��&&")*% C�� -��))#.)#%�*% C�� � *%&%)�*"-�#"$" �"�% �*L"���.� *�.;�N2H1@P25�� -�� ���" -�" *�*.�� ��C#""�" *�R%*L�*L"�>.��� %*<�,&*%. �B.�#-�.;�!� *��>#�S�>.� *<@�T &U�/>,B3@�;.#�*L"��-�% %'*#�*%. �.;�;% � &%�M�)�<�" *'�*.�'�)).#*��(,=�)�#*%&%)� *'�*.��**�% �� -���% *�% �L.�'% C�%'��M'.�#"&.��" -"-�;.#�B.�#-��))#.$�MU����
9\��������!(�%'�-"-%&�*"-�*.�" '�#% C�";;"&*%$"�'"#$%&"'�*.�)"#'. '�"V)"#%" &% C�.#��*6#%'W�.;�]̂_̀ àbbc̀bb�dc�efcgf�hijk�ĥ jcglm�n̂cbdbg̀cg�odg]�g]̀�ĥ jcglpb�q̂fa�ĝ�rîsdt̀�bgfuà�L.�'% C�;.#�%*'�#"'%-" *'U�Z.�*L%'�" -@��!(��-�% %'*"#'�F.*L�% *"# �M�)#.C#��'�� -�&. *#�&*"-�'"#$%&"'�R%*L�M.&�M�)#.$%-"#'�;.#�*L"�)#.$%'%. �.;�L.�'% C�'"#$%&"'�;.#�)"#'. '�"V)"#%" &% C�.#��*6#%'W�.;�L.�"M"'' "''U����!(�R�'�;%#'*��R�#-"-��(,=�;� -% C�% �v�<�H72G�*.�F"��*%M%S"-��'���Hw6�. *L�)%M.*�)#.C#���*.�)#.$%-"�.�*#"�&L@�&�'"��� �C"�" *@�-%'�F%M%*<�F" ";%*'��-$.&�&<�� -�L.�'% C��''%'*� &"@�% &M�-% C�*"�).#�#<�#" *�'�F'%-%"'@�*.�)"#'. '�M%W"M<�"M%C%FM"�;.#�-%'�F%M%*<�F" ";%*'�� -�"V)"#%" &% C�L.�"M"'' "''U��!(�L�'�F"" �&. *#�&*% C�R%*L�>,B�

xy

z{|}~��z�������

Page 28 of 49



���������	�
����������	����������	����	������	���������������������	��
	��������� �!"#$�%�����&'()*�+��	�&'(),������
���������	�����	��
��(''�
���	
�����	-�	��	����
��	�	��	���.��
����������	����	�*��/0123454�6�+	��	��	��(7,�&'&(,�8�++����9�	�������	���9��
	���������������9�9������������	����	-����
���������
��	�	��	�����������	��
����
�����*��+�������	��9������.����.���	��:(,;'&,(<&�����	���	�������������	������	��	�����.
����	�	-�	��	����
��	�	��	��������=	���	������	�9���������������		9���*�������9��
	��.���	��:(,;'&,(<&�.�����	���	�����9����
	����	��	����
	�8�>����		�	��9�����:()&,?')����:<'','''�����
	��	����	���9�9����.�����	���	�����9�����	����8��������99���.��
���������9����	���
�@�<�A�����������������������	����	������	��	�����������������*��+��.�����	��������
	�>�������������	�����	��������������	��
	��	����	���9��
	��.���,�����
	�9������	���������	������	���
����
�B�	�7',�&'&<*��������������,��+���	C�	�����
	�>�����������	��
	���	��	���9������		�	��.��
�8�>����	������
	����		�	�����:&(D,'?&������	.��������������9�:<'','''�9��������
����������	����������	*�8�++������9���������	�����
	�������	���+��EF�&(G&&�����	��.�����	������	������
	�8�>����		�	��������������.��
��
	�	.����������*�H
	���	��	���9��
������		�	��.��������.�8�>���������	����������
����������	���$I���J�$"% �%��K�#!L!%�%$�MNOP����%!#!��"% ���Q!L!%J�%���%%�!"��"I��������
�����*�H
	��	�9�����	��9��
	����		�	��.���������	�����	��	����	������
	����	��	����9�9���������������	�����	������	����	
��9��9��������������������*��H
	�	.����.���	��:(,;'&,(<&��������9����.����
	�����������
	��	�	���9��������	G
����������	���	�����������	�
���������������9����	�����	-�	��	����
��	�	��	�����+����8��R�8����*��S��	���	��9������,��+����������	���
	�9����.����������	�T'�	������	�
���	
�����.��
��������������	�����������
	�	���9�EF�&'&7G&<*����U5010V512�WXY1VZ�H
������		�	��.��������	C���	���	.������������9�8������		����9���*��8�++������9���������	�����
	�������	���+��EF�&(G&&�����	�����	�������9�������	���@EFA�&'&(G&&��.�����9�9����9����8�++������.����9����
	��	����	�������	�����
	������
	�������
	����������		�	��.��
�8�>���������
	���	�������*��8��������������>������9�+����8��R�8����,�[�*,�\�*�]<';7��̂ [�	-_̀a�b	�c�7?&(''_D;&?(��dZe1Zfg5V�h210�i2fXf0Zj4k�&*��@��������	�������c����	�	��	��A�G��+�����������.��
�8�>������������	�����	-�	��	����
��	�	��	���.��
���������������������������������
�����*���	����%l$�mOn�#�"%��#%�!"#�$� $ �MoN� ��Q!L!%J�%���$Ip#$�l��$L$  "$  ��"I�!"#�$� $�l�p !"�����������*���dqrX5ZZfs�r3t�u����S�����,������+	����	�����	������

vw

xyz{|}�x~������

Page 29 of 49



������������	
�������������������������������������� �!""�� ���#$$%�&���$'��%� ( ���������)��*+�,-�)�.+���/ 0�1�2�3� �1�  � ���)�45-67���8�.+����� ��� ���9�/ 0�1�2��� .+���:������ ���"�������; �� ��)��+00�:<�=-=9)==��� .+�����4+;�+�� ����>��� ���"������� � �+?)=@�==45-67���8�
AB

CDEFGH�CIJ�KLMA

Page 30 of 49



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *+�,-�% %'*#�*%. �!"#$%&"'�(%$%'%. �/0123�45464217��	��8�9���:�*%;<�=>?@(62A�,B#""�" *'�� -�,B#""�" *�C%*D�=%*<�.;�!� *��=#�E�F�������G
����H� ��#<�22I�J7JJ��K�9����������9����L�M��23�,&&")*�� -�;%N"�#").#*�. �=>?@(62A�#"N�*"-���" -�" *'�� -� "C��B#""�" *'��))#.$"-�O<�=.� *<�P�#&D�'% B�,B" *I��'���*D.#%E"-�O<�*D"�Q.�#-�.;�!�)"#$%'.#'�. �,)#%N�J0I�J7J7R�� -��J3�,))#.$"���" -"-��B#""�" *�C%*D�S..-�S��#-�!"&�#%*<�@ &TI�=. *#�&*�U.T�JJV4277I�% �*D"���.� *�.;�W2IJ77I777�;.#�=>?@(62A�'D"N*"#�'"&�#%*<�'"#$%&"'I�� -���*D.#%E"�*D"�(%#"&*.#�.;����� �!"#$%&"'�*.�"X"&�*"�*D"��B#""�" *'T��YZ�9������	���
���[D"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�/�!(3�%'�#"\�"'*% B�*D"�Q.�#-��&&")*�� -�;%N"�*D%'�#").#*�. �=>?@(62A�#"N�*"-���" -�" *'�� -� "C��B#""�" *'��))#.$"-�O<�*D"�]̂ _̀abcd�e_fghidj̀k�lkm̀an�id�i_aĥfjomp�qb�ahm�r̂ifp�̂̀ �lsfjt�uvn�uwuwn�j̀�fmdŝ d̀m�*.�*D"�"�"#B" &<�-"&N�#�*%. �#"'�N*% B�;#.��=>?@(62AT��!(�%'��N'.�#"\�"'*% B�*D"�r̂ifp�issf̂xm�̂̀ m�ĝ àfiga�iym̀pym̀a�mzgmmpj̀k�ahm�e_fghidj̀k�lkm̀acd�issf̂xit���*D.#%*<��'�)"#�*D"�=>?@(62A�#"N�*"-�,)#%N�J0I�J7J7�Q.�#-���*D.#%E�*%. T��
9{�������> �,)#%N�J0I�J7J7I�% �#"'). '"�*.�*D"�%��% " *�*D#"�*�*.�)�ON%&�D"�N*D�#"'�N*% B�;#.��=>?@(6|}�ìp�qidmp�̂̀ �mymfkm̀gb�pmgtifiaĵ̀ d�jdd_mp�qb�ahm�]̂ _̀abcd�~mitah����jgmfn�*D"�Q.�#-��-.)*"-���#"'.N�*%. �*.�*"�).#�#%N<�-"N"B�*"�%*'���*D.#%*<�*.�*D"�=.� *<�P�#&D�'% B�,B" *�*.��))#.$"�'&.)"�.;�C.#����" -�" *'�;.#�"X%'*% B�&. *#�&*'�� -�*.�% &#"�'"�*D"�P�#&D�'% B�,B" *�'���*D.#%*<�*.��))#.$"�&. *#�&*'�;.#�'"#$%&"'��)�*.�W2I777I777T�[D"���*D.#%*<�B#� *"-�*.�*D"�P�#&D�'% B�,B" *��NN.C'�=.� *<�-")�#*�" *'�*.�#"'). -�*.�*D"�=>?@(62A�"�"#B" &<�O<�"X)"-%*%.�'N<�%�)N"�" *% B�&. *#�&*�&D� B"'�.#� "C��B#""�" *'�% �#"'). '"�*.�*D"�"�"#B" &%"'T�@ �#"'). '"�*.�*D"�=>?@(62A�)�ON%&�D"�N*D�"�"#B" &<I��!(�)#.$%-"'�'"$"#�N�'"#$%&"'I�% &N�-% B�.)"#�*% B�'D"N*"#'I�*.�)#.$%-"�'�;"�" $%#. �" *'�;.#�$�N "#�ON"��"�O"#'�.;�*D"�&.��� %*<�%�)�&*"-�O<�=>?@(62AT�[D%'�% &N�-"'�'"#$%&"'�% �)�#* "#'D%)�C%*D�*D"�=%*<�.;�!� *��=#�ET�[D"'"�&. *#�&*"-�'"#$%&"'�% &N�-"�)#.$%-% B�).#*�ON"�#"'*#..�'I�D<B%" "�'*�*%. 'I�� -�� &%NN�#<�'"#$%&"'� "&"''�#<�;.#�*D"�.)"#�*%. �.;�'D"N*"#'T�!"#$%&"'�;.#�*D"�.)"#�*%. �.;�'D"N*"#'�% &N�-"�&N"� % BI�N% " I�-"N%$"#"-��"�N�'"#$%&"'�� -�'"&�#%*<�'"#$%&"'I���. B�.*D"#'T����
������[D"��**�&D"-� "C�� -���" -"-��B#""�" *'�N%'*�/,**�&D�" *�,3�% &N�-"'�;.�#�&. *#�&*'I�. "�C%*D�*D"�=%*<�.;�!� *��=#�E�� -�*D"�*D#""�.*D"#'�;.#�N.&�N�'D"N*"#�� -�D.�'% B�'�)).#*�'"#$%&"'T��!(�C%NN�&. *% �"���).#*%. �.;�%*'�=>?@(62A�#"N�*"-�'D"N*"#�'"#$%&"'�

��

��������������

Page 31 of 49



������������	��
�����������������������	������	������������������������	��������������������	�������������������������	���������������������� �����������	�������������������!"�#$%&'()(*�&+(,-)!$�./%/#!0�1-/!�%$%'�($2+$!#!�#-$�3')(4"!�)&&('5).�'6�)7����������8��������9����������������������� �����:��������;�����<=�����������	��8�����8��������>��?�@�������������9�����������������?��������������:AB �C�@�	������	��������	������	���D���8�������������������:AB �C�@��������������:���������������:��E��	�&)(#7$($4�F/#-�#-$�G/#*�'6�H)7#)�G(+I�#-('+J-�KHL"!�GMNOLC�@������������A��������	�G$7#$(�PLMGQ�/7�$!#)R./!-/7J�$%$(J$7,*�!-$.#$(�!$(5/,$!0�L+$�#'�#-$�G/#*"!�),,$!!�)74����	���8���������	��	�9�����������	�����	������	�9�������	�����	���������������>����	������	����>������������S���T��������A:�������:�������������	������	�9�������8��������������	��	������	�9�����>������>��	���>�����:�������U�������8�������:����������:���������������������8������������:AB �C�@������������	������
�����������������V�>�������W���������������8�?��������@X�����>������>��	���>�����:�������D�������	��������8�������	�����������������U���������U���YZ[\[]Z\̂�_̀a\]b�D��V�������c���8�����
���8������U8�����dVc
Ue��:����������A���������c���8������������	�d:��Ac�e���������:���������	�f������V����9������������	��������8�������	����������U���������U�g�;�9�����U�������U8�������	�h�	���U����������������9��8�������	����	�������	�����������������������������V����������>�������Vc
U��:��Ac���������U��������f�	����i����U���9������	����������	������	���S��	����>�����:�������������������>�����:�������������:��E�����:AB �C�@�	������	������	���jbk\blmZ]�n̂\[�ôl̀ l[bpqr���s�d:�������	����t�����u�������v�:����������������e�C�c	��>��	��8������9��8�������	������������8�������	���8�����������	������	���������	�����9	�t������),,'%%'4)#$�5)(/'+!�($!&'7!$�),#/5/#/$!�/7�#-$�G'+7#*"!�R(')4$(�$66'(#�#'�($!&'74�#'����:AB �C�@�����8��������jwx̀ Zbbly�xz{�f�����
����	��t������������	�����������|l]}̀ `l[yly�xz{�:����	�~��i������	��:������U�����	��������A���������bb\]�̀ l[bq{�\� ;�9�����U�������U8��������h�	�	�C�U���������U�>� U8��������C���<=���������������U������������� U�
C�@���<=���������������U���������

��

��������������

Page 32 of 49



 

o 

    County of Santa Cruz 

  

      HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION 

(831) 454-4130 or 454-4088 
FAX (831) 454-4642 

1000 Emeline Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
www.santacruzhumanservices.org      www.workforcescc.com 

 
Draft 

Meeting Minutes 
 
 

DATE: November 17, 2021 
TIME: 8:30 a.m. – 10:30 a.m. 
PLACE: Virtual Meeting via Microsoft Teams 
 

Commissioners Present: Emily Hanson (1st District); Lisa Smith (1st District); Martina Shayn  
O’Sullivan (2nd District); Danny Keith (2nd District); Monica Martinez (3rd District); Betsy Clark 
(3rd District); Stoney Brook (4th District); Jennifer Anderson-Ochoa (5th District); Denise Hitzeman 
(5th District). 
 
Commissioners Excused:  None 
 
Commissioners Unexcused: Felipe Hernandez (4th District)  
 
Commission Seats Vacant: None 
 
Staff Present: Randy Morris, HSD Director; Kimberly Petersen Employment and Benefit Services 
Division Director; Robin Luckett Family & Children’s Services Division Director, and Jackie West, 
Executive Secretary. 
 
Guests: none 
 
1. Approval of Minutes (Action):  The Commission approved September 15, 2021, meeting 

minutes. (Clark/Martinez) 
 AYES: Hanson, Smith, Keith, Martinez, Clark 
 NOES: None 
 ABSTAIN: Brook, Anderson-Ochoa 
 ABSENT: O’Sullivan, Hernandez, Hitzeman 
 
 
 

Page 33 of 49



2 
 

 
2. General Assistance Proposed Changes (Action): The Commission approved the proposed   

changes. 
(Brook/Clark) 

    AYES: Hanson, Smith, Keith, O’Sullivan, Martinez, Hernandez, Anderson-Ochoa   
 NOES: None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: Hitzman 

 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 10:37 a.m. 
 

Page 34 of 49



 

 County of Santa Cruz 
HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION 

PH (831) 454-4130ꞏ FAX (831) 454-4642 
1000 Emeline Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

www.hsd.co.santa-cruz.ca.us        www.workforcescc.com 
 

 
 
 
 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION’S  
FINDINGS PURSUANT TO ASSEMBLY BILL 361 AUTHORIZING TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS AS A RESULT OF 
THE CONTINUING COVID‐19 PANDEMIC STATE OF EMERGENCY AND HEALTH OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

FOR SOCIAL DISTANCING 
 

WHEREAS, THIS HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION is a legislative body under the Brown Act as defined 
under Cal. Gov. Code section 54952(b) and Santa Cruz County Code Section 2.38.110; and  
 

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed Assembly Bill 361 (“AB 361”), urgency 
legislation effective immediately, that amended Government Code section 54953 to permit legislative bodies 
subject to the Brown Act to continue to meet under modified teleconferencing rules provided that they 
comply with specific requirements set forth in the statute; and, 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to AB 361 and Cal. Gov. Code section 54953(e)(1)(A), a legislative body may meet 

under the modified teleconferencing rules during a proclaimed state of emergency, and where local officials 
have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; and 

 
  WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom issued a Proclamation of State of Emergency in 
response to the COVID‐19 pandemic, and which remains in effect; and 
  

WHEREAS, on September 30, 2021, Santa Cruz County Public Health Officer Dr. Gail Newel strongly 
recommended that legislative bodies in Santa Cruz County continue to engage in physical/social distancing by 
meeting via teleconference as allowed by AB 361 and confirmed that she will regularly review and reconsider 
this recommendation and notify the public when it is no longer recommended; and 
 
  WHEREAS, pursuant to AB 361 and Cal. Gov. Code section 54953(e)(3), within 30 days of the date the 
legislative body first holding a teleconferenced meeting under the modified rules, and every 30 days 
thereafter, a legislative body can continue to hold such teleconference meetings provided it has reconsidered 
the circumstances of the state of emergency and determined either that the state of emergency continues to 
directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person or that local officials continue to 
recommend measures to promote social distancing; and 
 
  WHEREAS, on January 19, 2022 this Human Services Commission held its teleconference meeting 
under AB 361; and 

 
 

WHEREAS, this Human Services Commission has reconsidered the circumstances of the current state of 
emergency and finds that the COVID‐19 pandemic continues to directly impact the ability of members of the 
public to participate safely in person and further finds that the Santa Cruz County Public Health Officer 
continues to recommend measures to promote social distancing; and 

Page 35 of 49



 
WHEREAS, in the interest of public health and safety, and due to the emergency caused by the spread 

of COVID‐19, the Human Services Commission deems it necessary to utilize the modified teleconferencing 
rules set forth in AB 361;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Human Services Commission makes the following findings by a majority vote:  
 
Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct, and adopted as findings of the Human Services 

Commission.  
 
  Section 2. Effective immediately, and for the next 30 days, the Human Services Commission will meet 
via teleconference as authorized under AB 361 and Government Code section 54953(e)(3). 

 
Section 3.  No later than thirty (30) days from making today’s findings, or at the next scheduled 

meeting, the Commission will reconsider the circumstances of the COVID‐19 state of emergency and, if 
necessary, adopt subsequent findings to continue holding teleconference meetings in accordance with 
Government Code section 54953(e)(3).  
 
  PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Human Services Commission in Santa Cruz, State of California, this 17th 
day of November 2021, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   Hanson, Smith, Keith, Shayn O’Sullivan, Martinez, Clark, Brook, Anderson‐Ochoa, Hitzeman 

NOES:   None 

ABSENT:   Hernandez 

ABSTAIN:   None 

        Betsy Clark 
   Chair, Human Services Commission 
 
ATTEST:  Micki Coca Buss 
    Department Staff 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
_____________________________________ 
  Office of the County Counsel 
 

Page 36 of 49



 

 

 SANTA CRUZ COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION 
  2018-2019 2020-2021 BIENNIAL REPORT  
  
 
I.  ROLE OF THE COMMISSION 
 
As established in Ordinance 4106, the Human Services Commission exercises the following 
responsibilities in its efforts to ensure the highest quality and maximum effectiveness of 
human services provided for the benefit of the citizens of the County: 
 

A. Guide long-term planning regarding meeting the socio-economic needs of low 
income, disabled, disadvantaged, and at-risk people in Santa Cruz County; 

 
B. Advise the County Board of Supervisors on policies and priorities that affect the 

socio-economic needs of low income, disabled, disadvantaged, and at-risk 
people; 

 
C. Provide advice and counsel to the director and senior management of the 

Human Services Department on best practices in the operation of department 
programs; 

 
D. Provide a forum for citizens affected by County human services programs and 

policies; 
 

E. Advise the Board of Supervisors on funding decisions affecting the socio-
economic needs of low income, disabled, and disadvantaged people, including 
county allocation of resources to County programs and community programs 
funding; 

 
F. Integrate efforts and initiatives affecting the socio-economic needs of the poor, 

which cross departmental, divisional, and interest group lines; and 
 

G. Advise the Board of Supervisors on legislative matters concerning the County 
human services programs. 

 
II. MEETING DATES, TIME AND LOCATION 

 
During reporting years 2018 2020 and 20192021, meetings were held from 8:30 to 
10:30 a.m. on the third Wednesday of every other month. Pursuant to AB361 and 
Cal.Gov. Code section 54953, due to the on-going COVID 19 state of emergency and 
upon recommendation of the County Health Officer, public meetings of the Human 
Services Commission were conducted in a hybrid/remote format. Member of the public 
can attend virtually by teleconference or in-person if hybrid.  The Commission’s usual 
meeting location was the United Way of Santa Cruz County, 4450 Capitola Road, 
Suite 106, Capitola. The Commission very much appreciates the United Way’s 
generosity in making its facility available for its meetings.   

Page 37 of 49



Human Services Commission 
2018- 2019 Biennial Report 
 
 

 

 
2 

 
 
 
 

III.   COMMISSION STRUCTURE AND MEMBERSHIP 
 
The Human Services Commission consists of 10 members appointed by the Board of 
Supervisors.   
 
As of December 2019 March 2021, the members of the Human Services Commission 
included: First District: Sandra Skees and Heidi Boynton Emily Hanson and Lisa 
Smith; Second District: Danny Keith (Commission Vice-Chair) and Martina 
O’Sullivan; Third District: Betsy Clark (Commission Chair) and Monica Martinez; 
Fourth District: Stoney Brook and Tony Gregorio Felipe Hernandez; and Fifth 
District: Jennifer Anderson-Ochoa and Denise Hitzeman.   
 
In 20182020, the members of the Human Services Commission were: First District: 
Sandra Skees and Heidi Boynton; Second District: Danny Keith (Commission Vice-
Chair) and Martina O’Sullivan; Third District: Betsy Clark (Vice  Commission Chair) 
and Monica Martinez; Fourth District: Stoney Brook and Tony Gregorio; and Fifth 
District: Jennifer Anderson-Ochoa (Commission Chair), ,and Denise Hitzeman. 
  

IV. COMMISSION STAFF 
 

The Commission was staffed by Ellen Timberlake Ellen Timberlake, HSD Director 
(January 2020) Randy Morris, HSD Director (2018 February 2020 and 2019 2021), 
and Jessica ScheinerMicki Coca Buss, Senior Human Departmental Administrative 
Services Analyst (20182020 and 2021), and Gary McNeil, Senior Human Services 
Analyst (2019). Jackie West, Executive Assistant (2020 and 2021) 
 

V. ATTENDANCE 
 

Please see the attached 2018 2020 and 2019 2021 attendance rosters.   
 
VI. BIENNIAL GOALS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS 
 

CORE Investments 
 
The Commission has been updated periodically on the development and 
implementation of the new Community Programs funding model, known as the 
activities associated with the Collective of Results and Evidence-based (CORE) 
Investments.  Commission activities related to the Community Programs/CORE 
investments included:  
 

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Page 38 of 49



Human Services Commission 
2018- 2019 Biennial Report 
 
 

 

 
3 

 Being kept apprised of ongoing strategic planning, the Request for Proposals 
(RFP) process, and technical support regarding the CORE Investments funding 
model; and  
Reviewing Board memos and correspondence on the implementation of the 
CORE Investments. 
 

State and Local Budget Impacts.  
 
The Commission was provided updates on the status of State and local budget 
deliberations and their implications for the Department’s programs.   
 
State and Federal Legislation 
 
The Commission was provided regular updates on State and federal proposed and 
enacted legislation, and their implications on both the Human Services Departments’ 
(HSD) programs and the persons it serves.   

 
Child Care Developer Fees Loan Program.  
 
The Commission was provided updates on the status of the Child Care Developer Fee 
Loan (CCDFL) program and was asked to consider and provide recommendations on 
next steps for the program. In March and July 2018, the Commission received an 
update on the Child Care Developer Fee Study, and the proposed fee increase. In 
November 2018, the Commission initiated a new CCDF application process utilizing a 
Commission subcommittee to guide the process.  The Commission received updates 
from subcommittee and staff throughout 2019, and in September 2019 approved a 
recommendation to the Board of Supervisors for loan awards to 18 child care 
providers totaling $170,000.  The recommendations were approved by the Board of 
Supervisors on October 22, 2019. 
 
Homelessness Services 
 
In July 2018 the Commission received an update from its homelessness education 
subcommittee, and in September 2018 it hosted a panel discussion on homelessness, 
that included local service providers, County Departments, the Housing Authority, and 
housing services advocates.  In July 2019, the Commission received presentations on 
the status of substance use disorder services in the County, and the availability of 
housing for individuals receiving recovery services.   
Housing Authority Family Self-Sufficiency Program Coordinating Committee 
 
In its capacity as the Santa Cruz County Housing Authority’s Family Self-Sufficiency 
Coordinating Committee, the Commission heard updates and provided 
recommendations on the program.   
In March 2021,Robert Ratner, MPH, MD, Housing for Health Division Director 

Page 39 of 49



Human Services Commission 
2018- 2019 Biennial Report 
 
 

 

 
4 

introduced the newly formed Housing for Health Division within the Human Services 
Department to the Commission. In addition, the Dr. Ratner hosted a question-and-
answer session for the Commission.   
 
Veterans Services 
 
Commissioner Stoney Brook, Veterans Liaison to the Human Services Commission, 
provided regular reports on programs, activities, and issues related to Veterans in 
Santa Cruz County.   
 
Child Support Services 
 
The Commission continued to act as a citizens’ advisory group to the Department of 
Child Support Services and received reports on the Department’s  
activities. 
 
Other Human Services Related Reports. 
 
Over the last two yearsIn January 2021, George Malachowski, HSD Business 
Analytics Manager, presented and overview of HSD’s Operational Plan.  In May 2021, 
the Commission received information on how to offer feedback on the County’s 
Operational Plan.   In September 2021, the Commission received a General 
Assistance report from Kimberly Petersen, Employment and Benefits Services Division 
Director reviewed and recommended to the Board of Supervisors changes to the 
General Assistance program.  The Commission received a presentation on the Human 
Care Alliance Wage equity Campaign, as well as an update on the Santa Cruz County 
2019-21 Strategic Plan.  In December 2019, the Commission heard a presentation on 
the Report on Career Pathways in Early Childhood Education. 
 

 Ongoing Review and Input on Human Services Programs and Issues.   
 
In order to meet its advisory, guidance, and counseling responsibilities under 
Ordinance 4106, the Commission was routinely provided with reports and briefings on 
HSD’s programs and activities and issues related to the socio-economic needs of 
persons in Santa Cruz County who are low income, disabled, disadvantaged, or at-
risk, including:  
 

 The Commission received reportsinformation from:   
o Alicia Morales, Adult & Long Term Care Division Director on 

California’s Master Plan on Aging.  
o Kimberly Petersen, Employment and Benefits Services Division 

director on the General Assistance (CA) Program, Cash Assistance 
Program for Immigrants (CAPI), and an overview of other programs 
administered by the division. 

Commented [MCB1]: We should consider the 
activities related to the homeless veterans 
and include in this section. 

Commented [MCB2]: Was the Commission provided 
any reports? 

Page 40 of 49



Human Services Commission 
2018- 2019 Biennial Report 
 
 

 

 
5 

o Robin Luckett, Family & Children’s Services Division Director on the 
services provided by the division.  on the Santa Cruz Museum of Art 
and History’s exhibit: “We’re Still Here”, addressing social isolation in 
the senior populations  

 The Commission received information on and was asked to provide 
recommendations on: 

o Proposed changes to the General Assistance program regulations; 
o HSD’s CalFresh Systems, specifically expansion of CalFresh Benefits 

to Seniors and Disabled Supplemental Security Income (SSI) 
recipients (Senior Expansion); 

o The County’s Thrive by Three initiative;  
o HSD’s Adult and Long Term Care division’s initiatives and priorities; 

and 
o The CalWORKs Housing Support Program. 

 
VII. FUTURE GOALS 
 

In 2020-20212022-2023, the Commission expects to carry out activities including, but 
not limited to, the following:  
 
 Providing advice and counsel to HSD’s Director and senior management regarding 

best practices for the operation of the Department's programs; 
 Receiving periodic reports on Veterans Services and the Child Welfare System 

Improvement Plan committee; 
 Providing advice and counsel to the Department of Child Support Services on 

initiatives sponsored by the Department that will benefit or otherwise impact low 
income Santa Cruz County residents; 

 Providing advice and counsel to the Santa Cruz County Housing Authority’s Family 
Self-Sufficiency program as its Coordinating Committee; 

 Providing counsel on potential changes to the Child Care Developer Fees Loan 
program process; 

 Providing counsel on issues related to homelessness in Santa Cruz County; 
 Reviewing issues affecting the low-income community and considering potential 

strategies to respond to emerging and/or recognized service needs;  
 Monitoring State and federal legislation that impact local human services, and 

advising the Board of Supervisors as necessary; and 
 Responding to matters referred by the Board of Supervisors and providing counsel 

to HSD’s Director and senior management upon request; 
 Revising and editing goals with the new HSD Director as needed.      

 
 

 
 

Formatted

Commented [MCB3]: Please provide feedback on 
future goals. 

Page 41 of 49



Human Services Commission 
2018- 2019 Biennial Report 
 
 

 

 
6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42 of 49



 
 
 

HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION  
ATTENDANCE FOR 2020 

 
 

 
 

  

 
* The March 18 and November 18, 2020, meetings of the Human Services Commission were 
cancelled.  
 
P – Present  
E – Excused Absence  
A – Unexcused Absence  
X – Not a member of the Commission 

 
District - Commissioner  1/15/20 3/18/20* 5/20/20 7/15/20 9/16/20 11/18/20*
 
1st Sandra Skees P P E P 

1st Heidi Boynton  P P P P 
 
2nd Danny Keith  E A P A 
 
2nd Martina O’Sullivan P E E P 

3rd Betsy Clark  E P P P 

3rd Monica Martinez P P P P 

4th Tony Gregorio  A P P P 

4th Stoney Brook P P P E 
 
5th Jennifer Anderson-Ochoa E A E P 

5th Denise Hitzeman P E P P 

Page 43 of 49



 
 
 

HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION  
ATTENDANCE FOR 2021 

 
 

 
 

  

 
* Appointment Changes: 
1st District:  

 Heidi Boynton term ended January 1, 2021 
 Sandra Skees term ended April 1, 2021 
 Emily Hanson term began April 1, 2021 
 Lisa Smith term began April 1, 2021 

 
4th District: 

 Tony Gregorio term ended January 1, 2021.   
 Felipe Hernandez term began March 1, 2021 

 
P – Present  
E – Excused Absence  
A – Unexcused Absence  
X – Not a member of the Commission 

 
District - Commissioner  1/20/21 3/17/21 5/19/21 7/21/21 9/15/21 11/17/21 
 
1st Sandra Skees* E A  

1st Heidi Boynton*  

1st Emily Hanson* P P P P

1st Lisa Smith* P P P P
 
2nd Danny Keith  P P P P P P
 
2nd Martina O’Sullivan P A E E P P

3rd Betsy Clark  P P P P P P

3rd Monica Martinez E P P P P P

4th Tony Gregorio*  

4TH Felipe Hernandez* P P P P A

4th Stoney Brook P P P E P P
 
5th Jennifer Anderson-Ochoa E A P E P P

5th Denise Hitzeman P P P P E P

Page 44 of 49



DRAFT 
HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION 

YEAR 2022 WORK PLAN 

 
 

BOARD RELATED ACTIVITIES 
 

OBJECTIVE 
 

STATUTORY PURPOSE  ACTIVITIES  TIME 
FRAME 

 
1. Review the Collective of 

Results and Evidence‐
Based (CORE) 
Investments  funding 
process.  

 
§2.60.050(A) & (E): 

Guide long‐term planning 
regarding the needs of at risk 
populations; Advise the Board of 
Supervisors on funding decisions. 

 

 Receive reports on the new CORE funding 
model, and provide advice and assistance in 
implementing the changes 

 Receive and review reports on CORE 
Investments funding recommendations and 
model, as well as CORE Conditions 

 Receive and review reports on CalFresh outreach 
activities and application assistance for CalFresh 
and health insurance.  

 

 

 
TBD 

 

 
2. Respond to matters 

referred by Board of 
Supervisors 

 
§2.60.050: 

Powers and duties. (Generally) 

 Respond to matters referred to the Human 
Services Commission on an as needed basis. 

As needed 

 
3. General Commission 

Administration 

 
§2.60.040: 

Organization and procedures. 

 Approve biennial report and annual work plan, 
set meeting schedule and elect officers. 
 

 

January 
 

 
 

4. Advocate for Human 
Service/Social Services 
Legislation  

 
§2.60.050(G): 

Advise the Board of Supervisors 
on legislative matters concerning 
County human services 
programs. 

 Review Departmental legislative priorities. 
 

 Receive/review Legislative Analyst’s Office (LAO) 
reports as appropriate. 

March  

As needed 

Page 45 of 49



2 
 

 
COMMUNITY RELATED ACTIVITIES 

 
OBJECTIVE 

 
STATUTORY PURPOSE  ACTIVITIES  TIME 

FRAME 
 

5. Share Information with 
other County health 
and human service 
commissions 

 
§2.60.050(A), (B) & (F):  

Guide long‐term planning; Advise 
the Board of Supervisors on 
policies and priorities that affect 
the needs of low income people; 
integrate efforts and initiatives. 

 As appropriate: Share minutes and agendas with 
other County Commissions; participate in joint 
subcommittees; and/or include chair or designee 
of other Commissions in forums promoting 
information sharing and planning on relevant 
community issues. 

 Invite other commissions to present at meetings.

 Invite the Workforce Development Board Chair 
and Director to provide reports on WIOA 
activities and participate in WIOA committees as 
appropriate.   

TBD 

  
 
 
 
TBD 

TBD 

 
 

    
6. Child Support Services 

 
§2.60.050(A) & (C): Guide long‐
term planning regarding the 
needs of at risk clients; advise 
Human Services Department 
Director. 

 

 Receive periodic reports from the Department 
of Child Support. 

 Review and comment on Department of Child 
Support initiatives.  

Ongoing 

 

As needed 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 46 of 49



3 
 

 
HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT PROGRAM RELATED ACTIVITIES 

 
OBJECTIVE 

 
STATUTORY PURPOSE  ACTIVITIES  TIME 

FRAME 
 

7. Increase community 
access to public 
assistance programs 

 

 

 

 

 

 
§2.60.050(A) & (C): Guide long‐
term planning regarding the 
needs of at risk clients; advise 
Human Services Department 
Director. 

 Review and consider reports on program 
progress, outreach efforts and outcomes in the 
following areas: CalWORKs/TANF Welfare‐to‐
Work and Work Participation Requirements, 
Medi‐Cal, CalFresh, and the Earned Income Tax 
Credit.  

 Review and consider reports on the progress of 
federal health insurance benefits. 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 
8. Child Welfare Services 

(CWS) System 
Improvement Plan (SIP) 

 
§2.60.050(A) & (C): Guide long‐
term planning regarding the 
needs of at risk clients; advise 
Human Services Department 
Director. 

 Review periodic reports from HSD’s Families 
and Children Division Director re: system 
improvement goals, indicators, and progress.  

 Continue to have a Commissioner designated as 
a liaison to the CWS System Improvement Plan 
Committee and receive periodic reports from 
the liaison.   

 Receive reports on the new Child Welfare 
Continuum of Care (CCR) and provide advice and 
assistance in implementing the changes 

Ongoing 
 
 
Ongoing 

 
9. Monitor General 

Assistance Program and 
review needed changes 
to regulations 

 
§2.60.050 (C): Provide advice and 
counsel to the HSD Director and 
senior management on best 
practices. 

 Consider changes to County General Assistance 
Regulations. 

As needed 

 
10. Veterans Services 

 

 
§2.60.050(A) & (C): Guide long‐
term planning regarding the 

 Receive periodic reports on services and 
resources for veterans and their families. 

Ongoing 

 

Page 47 of 49



4 
 

needs of at risk people; advise 
Human Services Department 
Director. 

 Continue to have a Commissioner designated as 
a liaison to Veterans Services Office and receive 
periodic reports from the liaison.  

Ongoing 

 

 
11. Participate in Child Care 

Development Fee Loans 
Process 

 

 
§2.60.050(E): Advise the Board of 
Supervisors on funding decisions. 

 Designate subcommittee to review and consider 
new funding priorities and develop a funding 
process for the allocation of Child Care 
Development fee funds.   

 Make recommendations to the Board on 
funding. 

As needed 

 

12. Housing Authority 
Family Self‐Sufficiency 
Program 

§2.60.050(A), (B) & (F):  

Guide long‐term planning; Advise 
the Board of Supervisors on 
policies and priorities that affect 
the needs of low income people; 
integrate efforts and initiatives. 

 Act as the Program Coordinating Committee for 
the Santa Cruz Housing Authority Family Self‐
Sufficiency Program including:  

o Receive periodic reports from the 
County of Santa Cruz Housing 
Authority on the Family Self‐
Sufficiency Program. 

o Review and comment on Family Self‐
Sufficiency Program initiatives. 

Ongoing 

 

As needed 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 48 of 49



 
 

HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION  
2022 Meeting Schedule  

 
 

Human Services Commission meetings are held bimonthly on the third 
Wednesday from 8:30 – 10:30 a.m.  
 
The 2021 Commission meetings will be held on the following dates:  
 
 
 January 19, 2022 – 8:30 to 10:30 a.m.     

 
 March 16, 2022 – 8:30 to 10:30 a.m.                                                                 

 
 May 18, 2022 – 8:30 to 10:30 a.m. 

 
 July 20, 2022 – 8:30 to 10:30 a.m. 

 
 September 21. 2022 – 8:30 to 10:30 a.m. 

 
 November 16, 2022 – 8:30 to 10:30 a.m. 

 
 
 
 
 

As a courtesy to those persons affected, please attend the meeting smoke and scent 
free. The County of Santa Cruz does not discriminate on the basis of disability, and 
no person shall, by reason of a disability, be denied the benefits of its services, 
programs, or activities.  The United Way Conference Room (as well as alternate sites) 
is in an accessible facility.  If you wish to attend one of these meetings and you will 
require special assistance in order to participate, please contact Micki Coca Buss at 
(831) 454-7505 or at micki.cocabuss@santacruzcounty.us in advance of the meeting 
to make arrangements.  

Page 49 of 49




